
 

Lloyd White 

Head of Democratic Services 

London Borough of Hillingdon, 

Phase II, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

 Putting our residents first 

   

North Planning 
Committee 

  

To Councillors on the Committee 
 
Councillor Edward Lavery (Chairman) 

Councillor John Morgan (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Jem Duducu 

Councillor Duncan Flynn 

Councillor Raymond Graham 

Councillor Henry Higgins 

Councillor Manjit Khatra 

Councillor John Oswell 

Councillor Jazz Dhillon 

 

   

Date: WEDNESDAY 10 JANUARY 
2018 
 

 

Time: 7.00 PM, OR UPON THE 
RISING OF THE MAJOR 
APPLICATIONS PLANNING 
COMMITTEE, WHICHEVER 
IS LATEST 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

  

Published: Tuesday 2 January 2018 

 Contact: Anisha Teji  
Tel: 01895 277655 
Email: ateji@hillingdon.gov.uk  

 

This Agenda is available online at: 
https://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=2905&Ver=4 

Public Document Pack



Useful information for  

residents and visitors 
 

Watching & recording this meeting 
 
You can watch the public (Part 1) part of this meeting 
on the Council's YouTube channel, live or archived 
after the meeting. Residents and the media are also 
welcome to attend in person, and if they wish, report 
on the public part of the meeting. Any individual or 
organisation may record or film proceedings as long 
as it does not disrupt proceedings.  
 
It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be 
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all 
attending and an area for the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should 
be contacted for further information and will be available to assist. 
 
When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices. 

 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the 
Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with 
the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short walk 
away. Limited parking is available at the Civic 
Centre. For details on availability and how to book a 
parking space, please contact Democratic Services. 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee Room.  
 

Accessibility 
 
For accessibility options regarding this agenda 
please contact Democratic Services.  For those 
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is 
available for use.  
 

Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest FIRE 
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless instructed by a 
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued 
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, 
should make their way to the signed refuge locations. 

 

 



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings 

 

 

Security and Safety information 
Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the 
fire alarm will sound continuously.  If there is a 
SECURITY INCIDENT follow the instructions issued 
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshall or a Security 
Officer.  

 

Mobile telephones – Please switch off any mobile 

telephones before the meeting.  
 

Petitions and Councillors 
Petitions – Those who have organised a petition of 
20 or more people who live, work or study in the 
borough, can speak at a Planning Committee in 
support of or against an application.  Petitions 
must be submitted in writing to the Council in 
advance of the meeting.  Where there is a 
petition opposing a planning application there is 
also the right for the applicant or their agent to 
address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.   

Ward Councillors – There is a right for local 
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about 
applications in their Ward.  

Committee Members – The planning committee is 
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet 
in public every three weeks to make decisions on 
applications. 

 

How the Committee meeting works 
The Planning Committees consider the most 
complex and controversial proposals for 
development or enforcement action.  

Applications for smaller developments such as 
householder extensions are generally dealt with 
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated 
powers.  

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which 
comprises reports on each application 

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at 
the beginning of the meeting.   

The procedure will be as follows:-  

1. The Chairman will announce the report;  

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a 
presentation of plans and photographs;  

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser 
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant 
followed by any Ward Councillors; 

 

4. The Committee may ask questions of the 

petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;  

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek 
clarification from officers;  

6. The Committee will vote on the 
recommendation in the report, or on an 
alternative recommendation put forward by a 
Member of the Committee, which has been 
seconded. 

 

About the Committee’s decision 
The Committee must make its decisions by 
having regard to legislation, policies laid down 
by National Government, by the Greater London 
Authority – under ‘The London Plan’ and 
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained 
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and 
supporting guidance.  The Committee must also 
make its decision based on material planning 
considerations and case law and material 
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s 
report and any representations received.  

Guidance on how Members of the Committee 
must conduct themselves when dealing with 
planning matters and when making their 
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of 
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s 
Constitution.  

When making their decision, the Committee 
cannot take into account issues which are not 
planning considerations such a the effect of a 
development upon the value of surrounding 
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself 
is not sufficient ground for refusal of 
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to 
the design of the property.  When making a 
decision to refuse an application, the Committee 
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for 
refusal  based on material planning 
considerations.   

If a decision is made to refuse an application, 
the applicant has the right of appeal against the 
decision.  A Planning Inspector appointed by the 
Government will then consider the appeal.  
There is no third party right of appeal, although 
a third party can apply to the High Court for 
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3 
months of the date of the decision.  

 



 

 

Agenda 
 

 

 

Chairman's Announcements 

1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting  

3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting 1 - 4 

4 Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent  

5 To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered 
in public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private 

 

 

PART I - Members, Public and Press 
 
Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the 
Chairman may vary this.  The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the 
address of the premises or land concerned. 
 

Applications with a Petition 
 

 Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page 

6 3 Albany Close, 
Ickenham  
 
72581/APP/2017/3376 
 
 

Ickenham 
 

Single storey side extension, 
conversion of roof space to 
habitable use to include 2 x rear 
dormers and 3 x front roof lights. 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 

5 - 14 
 

124 - 129 

7 53 Weiland Road, 
Northwood   
 
28044/APP/2017/2249 
 
 

Northwood 
 

Part two storey, part single storey 
side/rear extension and demolition 
of garage. 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

15 - 28 
 

130 - 137  

8 Midhurst Cottage, 
High Road, Eastcote   
 
73006/APP/2017/3705 
 
 

Northwood 
Hills 
 

Part single and part two storey 
rear extension. 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

29 - 42 
 

138 - 142  



 

9 8 Monks Close, 
Ruislip  
 
72216/APP/2017/3508 
 
 

South 
Ruislip 
 

Conversion of dwelling into 1 x 1-
bed and 1 x studio self-contained 
flats with associated parking and 
amenity space, involving part two 
storey, part single storey rear 
extension. 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 

43 - 56 
 

143 - 150  

 

Applications without a Petition 
 

 Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page 

10 4 Ashburton Road, 
Ruislip  
 
15579/APP/2017/3615 
 
 

Manor 
 

Part two storey, part single storey 
side/rear extension, single storey 
front extension and conversion of 
roof space to habitable use to 
include a rear dormer and 
conversion of dwelling from 1 x 4-
bed to 3 x 2-bed and 1 x 1- bed 
self-contained flats with associated 
parking and amenity space and 
installation of vehicular crossover 
to front. 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 

57 - 72 
 

151 - 156  

11 4 Victoria Road, 
Ruislip  
 
34090/APP/2017/3428 
 
 

Manor 
 

Change of use from retail (Use 
Class A1) to a nail bar (Sui 
Generis) 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

73 - 82 
 

157 - 161  

12 86 Victoria Road, 
Ruislip  
 
28709/APP/2017/3180 
 
 

Manor 
 

Change of use from retail (Use 
Class A1 to a mixed use 
comprising retail, restaurant and 
hot food takeaway Use Classes 
A1/A3/A5), involving installation of 
extractor fan to rear and internal 
alterations 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

83 - 92 
 

162 - 169  

13 David Lloyd Club, 
Northwood  
 
272/APP/2017/3148 
 
 

Northwood 
 

Installation of an outdoor pool and 
associated works. 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

93 - 104 
 

170 - 176  

 



 

 

PART II - Members Only 
 
The reports listed below are not made public because they contain confidential or 
exempt information under paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended. 
 

14 ENFORCEMENT REPORT  105 - 112 

15  ENFORCEMENT REPORT 113 - 122 

 

PART I - Plans for North Planning Committee                    123 - 176  



Minutes 

 

 

NORTH Planning Committee 
 
5 December 2017 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 

 

 

 Committee Members Present:  
Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman), Jazz Dhillon, Jem Duducu, Raymond Graham, 
Henry Higgins, Manjit Khatra, John Oswell and Brian Stead (Reserve) (In place of 
Duncan Flynn) 
 
LBH Officers Present:  
Glen Egan (Office Managing Partner - Legal Services), Edward Oteng (Major 
Applications Manager), James Rodger (Head of Planning and Enforcement), Luke 
Taylor (Democratic Services Officer) and Alan Tilly (Transport and Aviation Manager) 
  

119. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

 Apologies were received from Councillor John Morgan and Councillor Duncan Flynn, 
with Councillor Brian Stead substituting. 
 

120. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING  
(Agenda Item 2) 
 

 There were no declarations of interest. 
 

121. TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  (Agenda 
Item 3) 
 

 RESOLVED: That the minutes from the meeting on 15 November 2017 were 
agreed as a correct record. 
 

122. MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT  (Agenda Item 
4) 
 

 None. 
 

123. TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE  (Agenda Item 5) 
 

 It was confirmed that all items would be considered in public. 
 

124. 60 LONG LANE, ICKENHAM - 70282/APP/2017/3656  (Agenda Item 6) 
 

 Two -storey detached building with habitable roof space to create eight two-bed 
flats with associated amenity space, parking and installation of vehicular 
crossover, involving demolition of existing dwelling house. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



  

Officers introduced the proposed development, which sought the demolition of the 
existing dwelling and erection of a two-storey building, with habitable roofspace, 
providing eight two-bed flats. 
 
A petitioner spoke in objection to the application, noting that the bulk and size of the 
proposal were too large, and it included features that were out of keeping with the 
street scene. The Committee heard that residents believed the application was an 
overdevelopment in a Conservation Area, and would exacerbate traffic, parking and 
road safety issues in the area, as well as increasing noise and air pollution.  
 
Members agreed that the application was out of keeping in the surrounding area, and 
noted that there were multiple reasons for refusal that were agreeable. The Committee 
moved, seconded, and unanimously agreed the officer's recommendation.  
 
RESOLVED: That the application was refused. 
 

125. 103 SHENLEY AVENUE, RUISLIP - 20004/APP/2017/2989  (Agenda Item 7) 
 

 Two two-storey, four-bed, semi-detached dwellings with associated parking and 
amenity space and installation of two vehicular crossovers to front, involving 
demolition of existing bungalow. 
 
Members introduced the application, which sought two two-storey, four-bedroom, semi-
detached dwellings, involving the demolition of the existing dwelling. 
 
A petitioner spoke in objection to the application, stating that residents considered the 
application was an overdevelopment, intrusive and overbearing in the local area, and 
was out of keeping with the street scene.  
 
The Committee also heard that the application was very similar to a previous 
application on the site that was withdrawn after officer's recommended it for refusal. 
 
Officers confirmed that the previous application had an unacceptable parking layout, 
which has been revised in the new application as is to the satisfaction of the Council's 
Highways Engineer. The Committee also heard that the 45 degree line was no longer 
breached and complies with guidelines.  
 
Members confirmed that they were sympathetic to residents who opposed the 
application, but noted that on merit, it was difficult to refuse the application. As such, 
the officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and unanimously agreed. 
 
RESOLVED: That the application was approved. 
 

  
The meeting, which commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 6.28 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Luke Taylor on 01895 250 693.  Circulation of these minutes 
is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public. 
 
The public part of this meeting was filmed live on the Council's YouTube 
Channel to increase transparency in decision-making, however these minutes 
remain the official and definitive record of proceedings. 

Page 2



  

 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3 ALBANY CLOSE ICKENHAM  

Single storey side extension, conversion of roofspace to habitable use to
include 2 x rear dormers and 3 x front rooflights.

15/09/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 72581/APP/2017/3376

Drawing Nos: 3841/04

3841/05 A

Location Plan

3841/02 C

Date Plans Received: 31/10/2017Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The application relates to a detached bungalow located in a corner plot on the Southern
side of Albany Close, a cul de sac. The property is set beneath a hipped roof with a
projecting front gable feature over the integrated garage on the Western side and the
property currently benefits from a conservatory on the Eastern side. There is a reasonable
sized front garden laid to hardstanding and which can provide parking for at least two cars
and there is also private garden space to the side and rear of the property.

The street scene is residential in character and appearance and comprises 5 dwellings. No
1 is a two storey property but the others are single storey. Nos. 2, 3 and 5 are of a similar
design however no 4 is more T shaped, finished with gabled ends.

The application site lies within the Ickenham Village Conservation Area and the 'Developed
Area' as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November
2012).

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a single storey side
extension, with an attached garage to the front/rear and the conversion of the roofspace to
habitable use forming an additional bedroom with en-suite bathroom and storage. This
includes the 2 rear dormer windows and 3 front rooflights.

72581/APP/2017/1057

72581/APP/2017/459

3 Albany Close Ickenham  

3 Albany Close Ickenham  

Conversion of roofspace to habitable use to include 1 x front and 3 x rear dormers and conversion

of roof from hip to gable end with a Juliette Balcony.

20-06-2017Decision Date: Refused

1. CONSIDERATIONS  

1.3 Relevant Planning History  

1.1 Site and Locality  

1.2 Proposed Scheme  

15/09/2017Date Application Valid:

Appeal: 

Agenda Item 6

Page 5



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

72581/APP/2017/1057 - Conversion of roofspace to habitable use to include 1 x front and 3
x rear dormers and conversion of roof from hip to gable end with a Juliette Balcony
(refused) 
72581/APP/2017/542 - Conversion of attached garage to habitable use (approved)
72581/APP/2017/459 CLD - Conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear
dormer (refused)

The previous application was refused by reason of the hip to gable end roof design and the
size, scale and design of the front and rear dormer windows, which would fail to harmonise
with the architectural composition, character and appearance of the original dwelling and
would be detrimental to the visual amenities of the street scene and the wider Ickenham
Village Conservation Area.

Not applicable 25th October 2017

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6 neighbours and the Ickenham Residents Association were consulted for a period of 21
days expiring on the 16 October 2017. A site notice was also erected on the lamp post
opposite. 

There were 7 responses received raising the following issues:
- Albany Close provides an open and inviting vista, the gates as proposed would destroy
this.
- The conversion of the bungalow to a house would be out of keeping with the character of
the neighbouring bungalows.
- Not appropriate within the Conservation Area.
- Loss of privacy from the dormer windows in close proximity.
- I have been informed by the builder that his mother will be living there alone, so it is
puzzling why she needs so much work to be carried out. This is already a large bungalow.
- Loss of privacy from the front windows, if granted they should be obscure glazed and non
opening.
- The proposed garage will bring cars alongside out property causing additional noise and
fumes. The original garage was at the far end of the property, not passing us.
- The height of the garage would obstruct lights into our dining room .
- The proposed garage is out of keeping to the rest of the bungalow.

72581/APP/2017/542 3 Albany Close Ickenham  

Conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer (Application for a Certificate of

Lawful Development for a Proposed Development)

Conversion of attached garage to habitable use

27-02-2017

18-04-2017

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Refused

Approved

Comment on Planning History  

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Appeal: 

Appeal: 

Page 6



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

A petition against the proposal was also submitted.

The Ward Member has also raised concerns and made comments, in addition to the
issues raised above, and has advised that should this be approved it would set an
unwarranted precedent for adjoining properties. There is a desperate need for single storey
dwellings in Ickenham for local residents wishing to downsize yet remain in the community
to which they associate themselves to be able to remain with friends and also activities.
This is evidenced by development targets in Ickenham for just that reason as residential
retirement units.  He supports in principle the main objections outlined in the petition
submitted by the residents.

Officer response: The gates, wall and railings originally proposed within the scheme have
been removed. 

Ickenham Conservation Area Panel - No response.

Conservation and Urban Design - The proposed side/front extension would be considered
unacceptable. The proposed garage and store element would be built up to the front
boundary forward of the main property. The form of the building would follow the site
boundary line and would not relate to the original building and be would be considered
detrimental to the character and appearance of the street scene and the Conservation
Area. Whilst there is scope for a side addition, it would need to be set back from the front
building line. Taking into account the property is a bungalow it is recommended that the
proposed flat roof form is amended to a pitched roof in keeping with the property.

The existing roof scape within the cul-de-sac is unaltered, providing a unique uniform street
scene. Whilst the principle of a rear dormer could be considered, the proposed 2 box style
dormers would be considered unacceptable. They would need to remain subservient and
in keeping with the character and appearance of the existing property. The size of the
dormers would need to be substantially reduced and revised with the window openings
filling out the entire elevation, with allowance for slim framing and a pitch roof form
explored. It is recommended that eyebrow style dormers are considered as these would sit
more comfortably within the shape and size of the roof and would appear more subservient
to the character and appearance of the bungalow. Alternatively a single, central placed
dormer could be considered however this would need to be carefully designed. The
dormers would need to be externally finished in hung tiles to match the existing roof.

The proposed gates and railing would be considered in principle unacceptable. The cul-de-
sac is characterised by an open frontage, grassed areas and mature hedges. The
installation of the railings and gate would detrimentally alter the character and appearance
of the street scene.

Officer response: The front gates and railings have been removed from the proposal and
following discussions with the Conservation Officer revisions to the side extension have
been submitted including a parapet to the sides of the flat roof and glazing to all three sides
more in keeping with an orangery.

Highways - No objections on highway grounds.

4.

Page 7



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.BE1

PT1.HE1

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Heritage

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM14

BE4

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE23

BE24

BE38

LPP 3.5

NPPF

HDAS-EXT

New development and car parking standards.

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new
planting and landscaping in development proposals.

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

National Planning Policy Framework

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Part 2 Policies:

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

The main issues for consideration in determining this application relate to the effect of the
proposal on the character and appearance of the original dwelling, the impact on the visual
amenities of the surrounding area, the impact on residential amenity of the neighbouring
dwellings and the availability of parking.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
states that all new developments should achieve a high quality of design in all new
buildings and the public realm contributes to community cohesion and a sense of place.
Policies BE4, BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) states that the layout and appearance of new development should
"harmonise with the existing street scene or other features of the area."  Policy BE4
reflects the relevant legal duties.The NPPF (2012) notes the importance of achieving
design which is appropriate to its context stating that 'Permission should be refused for
development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the
character and quality of an area and the way it functions.'

The Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document, the Hillingdon Design and
Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions (December 2008) sets out the design
criteria including external dimensions by which proposals are assessed with the general
aim of ensuring that these are subordinate to the original building.

Page 8



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The proposal includes a single storey side extension which measures 3.65 m wide, 7.9 m
deep with a flat roof of 3 m in height (3.1 m including the parapet). HDAS advises side
extensions should not dominate the existing character of the original property. The width
and height should be considerably less than that of the main house and be between half
and two thirds width of the original house. Extensions with a flat roof should not exceed 3 m
in height and 3.1 m including a parapet. The proposed side extension would comply with
HDAS requirements and has been revised in line with the Conservation Officers
comments. It is therefore considered that this element of the proposal is considered
acceptable.

To the side and rear of this the proposal includes a new garage. This measures 5.7 m in
depth and has maximum width of 5.2 m decreasing to 3.65 m as it follows the boundary to
the rear. This is also set beneath a flat roof of 2.85 m in height. Concern has been raised
by the Conservation Officer that the proposed garage is sited forward of the front building
line of the original dwelling and would be out of keeping with the character of the original
dwelling and the wider Conservation Area. HDAS advises that front extensions are eye
catching and change the face of the building and also the street scene. The proposed
garage would be set forward of the front building line of the existing dwelling. Although the
extension is setback some diatnce from the road edge it would have the visual affect of
making it appear as if No's 2 and 3 Albany Close were joined together, as the only sizeable
gap between ther two properties (and in fact No's 1 to 4 Albany Close) would be removed.
Although the plans have been revised during the determination fo the application there is
still concern that the siting of the extension will be harmful to the appearance of the
streetscene and that of the neighbouring property.  
The applicant has drawn officer's attention to the large forward projecting garage at No. 5,
which sits between the front wall of the original dwelling and the road. No.5 has a different
context in the streetscene and is viewed separately from No's 1-4 Albany Close.
Furthermore this is an old extension approved some time before current national and local
planning policies were adopted, therefore very little weight is placed on this extension as a
precedent.

The proposal also includes alterations to the roof with 2 rear dormer windows and 3 front
rooflights. The rooflights are relatively modest in scale and evenly spaced across the
roofslope, and in terms of appearance are considered acceptable. To the rear the
proposed box dormer windows measure 2.15m in width, 3.35m in depth and 1.95m in
height. HDAS advises that dormer windows or roof extensions must be constructed in the
centre of the roof face. As a guide they should be set at least 0.3 m below the ridge at least
0.5 m above the eaves and 0.5 m from the side roof margins. Although in principle the
proposed dormer windows would comply with HDAS guidance, the Conservation Officer
has raised serious concerns over the size and design of the dormers, recommending they
would need to be substantially reduced in scale and revised with the window openings
filling out the entire elevation, with allowance for slim framing and a pitch roof form
explored. They recommended that eyebrow style dormers are considered as these would
sit more comfortably within the shape and size of the roof and would appear more
subservient to the character and appearance of the bungalow.     
The proposed rear dormers present a large and bulky appearance, which would add to the
overall bulk of the property and detract from the character and appearance of the modest
bungalow and the wider Conservation Area.  As such it is considered that the proposal fails
to comply with the requirements of Policies BE4, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Section 7.0 of HDAS.

Policy BE20 states that buildings should be laid out to allow adequate daylight to penetrate

Page 9



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

RECOMMENDATION 6.

and amenities of existing houses safeguarded. The dwelling occupies a corner position in
the cul de sac facing down the road and level with the adjacent property no. 4.  Given the
relationship to the adjacent property it is not considered that the proposed side extensions
and roof alterations would significantly impact on the amenity of the occupiers of that
dwelling. No 2 Albany Close is situated to the front of the application site and set at right
angles to the application site, with a distance of approximately 7 m between the front wall of
no. 3 and the side wall of no.2. Concerns have been raised with regard to the potential loss
of light to the neighbouring property as a result of the proposed garage situated adjacent to
the boundary. This would be situated adjacent to the shared boundary at a height of 2.85
m. Although it is noted this would project beyond the rear of the neighbouring property by
approximately 5 m it would be set back approximately 3.6 m from the side of the
neighbouring property at the nearest point widening to approximately 4.7 m as the boundary
moves away from the neighbouring property. Given the degree of separation it is not
considered this would significantly impact on the amenity of the neighbouring property. The
proposed dormers windows are at a sufficient distance set within the roofslope so as not to
significantly impact on the amenity of the neighbouring occupiers. It is noted concerns have
been raised over the potential increase of noise and fumes from the garage structure due
to its siting and proximity, however as this area has the potential for the parking of vehicles
without the need for planning permission it is not considered that this would warrant a
refusal on this basis. As such, the proposal complies with Policies BE20 and BE21 of the
adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Policy BE24 states that the proposal should protect the privacy of the occupiers and their
neighbours. Paragraph 4.12 of HDAS guidance also advises that where habitable room
windows face each other, a minimum 21 m distance is required to safeguard privacy. This
also applies to an area of private amenity space or patio, normally taken to be the 3 m
depth of rear garden immediately adjoining the rear elevation of a residential property.  
The proposed rear dormer windows will face the rear of the property, with the proposed
rooflights facing the front. To the rear the proposed dormer windows would be
approximately 23 m from the nearest property at 38 Halford Road. To the front the
proposed rooflights would face the roofslope of no. 2 and their front garden area. It is noted
that taking a 45 degree line of sight from the nearest rooflight would result in overlooking to
the side dining room window, within 12 m and as such would result an unacceptable loss
of privacy to that dwelling. However as this would serve a landing area this could be
conditioned to be obscure glazed and fixed shut below 1.8 m if all other aspects of the
proposal were acceptable. As such, the proposal would be in compliance with Policy BE24
of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms and those altered by the proposals
would maintain an adequate outlook and source of natural light, therefore complying with
Policy 3.5 of the London Plan.

Paragraph 5.13 of Residential Extensions. HDAS: Residential Extensions requires
sufficient garden space to be retained as a consequence of an extension. The property
benefits from a good sized rear garden and adequate garden space would be retained.

There is no impact on parking provision as a result of this proposal.

Page 10



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The rear dormer winows and single storey side extensions, by reason of their size, scale
and in particular location of the side extension and design of the rear dormer windows,
would fail to harmonise with the architectural composition, character and appearance of
the original dwelling. The proposals would also be detrimental to the visual amenities of
the street scene and the wider Ickenham Village Conservation Area. Therefore the
proposals would be contrary to Policy BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One
- Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE4, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November
2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Extensions.

1

1

2

3

INFORMATIVES

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2016).  On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.
Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary
Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for
the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right
to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of
the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of
discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012)
set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including The London Plan - The Spatial Development
Strategy for London consolidated with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national
guidance.

AM14

BE4

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE23

BE24

BE38

New development and car parking standards.

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting

Page 11



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

4 In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the
National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive way. We have made available detailed advice in the form of our
statutory policies from the 'Saved' UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary
Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other informal written guidance, as well
as offering a full pre-application advice service.

Standard Informatives 

1           The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to 
             all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
             policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
             unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
             Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
             life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
             (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance. 

AM14

BE4

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE23

BE24

BE38

New development and car parking standards.

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision

2 

LPP 3.5

NPPF

HDAS-EX

and landscaping in development proposals.

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

National Planning Policy Framework

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted December 2008

PT1.BE1

PT1.HE1

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

Part 1 Policies:

Page 12



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Liz Arnold 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

LPP 3.5

NPPF

HDAS-EXT

of new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

National Planning Policy Framework

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Page 13



V
Y

N

33

C
O

U
R

T
 R

O
A

D

THE CHASE

29

A
L

B
A

N
Y

 C
L

O
S

E 33a

27

1

39

5

15

39.6m

42

53

35

38.7m

37

42

26

40

30

19

SWAKELEYS DRIVE

22

38.1m

15

26

31

4
8

18

´

January 2017

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

3 Albany Close

North Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

72581/APP/2017/3376

Page 14



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

53 WIELAND ROAD NORTHWOOD  

Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension and demolition of
garage

20/06/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 28044/APP/2017/2249

Drawing Nos: 5369-A103 E

5369/A102 F

TS15-332T/2

TS15/332T/3

TS15-332T/1

5369/A100 B

Date Plans Received: 20/06/2017Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The application site comprises a period detached property situated on the South Eastern
side of Wieland Road. The property benefits from a good sized landscaped front garden
set behind a well established hedge. It has a central pathway leading between two lawned
areas to the front door. To the side there is a driveway, which can accommodate 2 cars
and leads to a detached single garage. To the rear is a large landscaped garden enclosed
with hedges.  

The street scene is residential in character and appearance comprising of two storey
detached properties, set on generous plots. 

The application site lies within the 'Developed Area' as identified in the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and lies within the Gatehill Farm
Estate Area of Special Local Character.

The application seeks permission for the erection of a two storey side/rear extension. The
proposed side extension measures 3.05 m in width and 12.2 m in depth, including a rear
projection of 4 m. It should be stressed that the big change between this application and
the 2015/2016 application is the reduction of the two storey side extension (by over 1m
width and 2m depth) so it is now policy compliant dimensions and leaves a bigger gap to
the side boundary.

The extension then returns across the full width of the rear elevation (15.25 m including the
side extension) and is set beneath an extended roof of a height to match the existing. This
includes two rear hipped projections with a valley between. There is a small section of
single storey to the front of the garage and level with the existing front projection which has
a crown roof detail of 3.6 m in height.

1. CONSIDERATIONS  

1.1 Site and Locality  

1.2 Proposed Scheme  

03/07/2017Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 7

Page 15



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

28044/APP/2016/2888 - Two storey side/rear extension (withdrawn)
28044/APP/.2015/4173 - Part two storey, part single storey side extension and two storey
rear extension (refused). The proposal included a side extension measures 4m wide by
14.23m deep, including a 6m deep rear projection beyond the rear wall of the original
dwelling.

The 2015 application was refused on the basis of the scale, bulk and design of the
proposal, the impact on the neighbouring property and the closing of the significant gap
between the properties.
Both the 2015 and 2016 applications involved large two storey side extensions of 4m width
and 14.2 m depth with a rear projection of 6m. This aspect of the proposals in particular
caused concern. The 2016 application would have been refused permission (given it had
exactly the same size harmful two storey side extension) had the applicant not withdrawn it
(the proposal was subject to a published committee report).

Not applicable 

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 17th August 20172.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6 neighbours and the Gatehill Residents Association were consulted for a period of 21 days
expiring on the 8 August 2017. A site notice was also erected on the lamp post on the
junction of Wieland Road and Elgood Avenue. 

There was 1 response received from planning representative for the Gateshill Residents
Association (GRA) who raised the following issues:
- The GRA policy is to object to submissions which are not clearly within LBH planning
policies to help preserve the Estate.
- The proposed front roof extension/alteration takes away the original architecture of this
values 1920;s house and thus will be detrimental to the street scene and the wider
Gateshill Farm Estate area of Special Local Character.
- We object to the second storey side extension as its ugly design disrupts that of the
original house and so would be detrimental to the street scene and the wider ASLC.
- We welcome the demolition of the garage and its integration into the main body of the
house, thus increasing the side flank boundary with no. 51 to 1.5 m.
- However we note the roof form on the right hand side of the front elevation has been
extended to replace the current central flat roof dormer of the bathroom. This dormer is
very much part of the character of the original house.
- We also consider that the front left hand extension over the garage finished with a barge

28044/APP/2015/4173

28044/APP/2016/2888

53 Wieland Road Northwood  

53 Wieland Road Northwood  

Part two storey, part single storey side extension and two storey rear extension

Two storey side/rear extension

14-01-2016

06-10-2016

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Refused

Withdrawn

1.3 Relevant Planning History  

Comment on Planning History  

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Appeal: 

Appeal: 

Page 16



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

board is odd and detracting but understand this is done to maximise floor space on the first
floor.
- Should the Planning Department be minded to approve this application, we would point
out the due to the narrow width of Wieland Road, LBH standard conditions are inadequate
and some not appropriate as they reflect the situation in respect of adopted road not private
road.
- We respectively remind you the verges are owned by the GRA not the applicant.
- We would request any approval include the following additional conditions;
- An appropriate hoarding be erected on the site boundary before work starts and
maintained until completion. Access to the site shall be via a gate in the position of the
existing carriage crossing.
- All materials delivered to and spoil from the site be stored within the site, behind the
hoarding.
- All vehicles involved with the site be parked within the site boundary.
- All vehicles delivering to the site must avoid damaging the road and verges belonging to
the GRA, with any accidental damage being repaired immediately.
- A route for HGV's is agreed with the GRA before work starts and should this be ignored
then the Company involved will be dismissed immediately. Vehicles considered oversized
for the Estate road shall not be employed.
- The garage on the plans should remain in use as a garage and not be allowed a change
of use to a habitable room.

A petition of 22 signatures against the proposal was also received.

Officer response: 
Issues of landownership are not material planning considerations and are a civil issue to be
resolved between interested parties. Any subsequent grant of planning approval does not
override any other legislation or rights of ownership or right of access or the ability to
prohibit access. In consideration of a planning application, Local Planning Authorities
should consider whether otherwise unacceptable development could be made acceptable
through the use of conditions. Planning conditions can only be imposed where they are:
1. necessary; 
2. relevant to planning and; 
3. to the development to be permitted; 
4. enforceable; 
5. precise and; 
6. reasonable in all other respects
Some of the proposed conditions put forward by the GRA relate to access and potential
damage to the road and verges which relate to construction management and wording
requiring dismissal iof companies goes far beyind the powers of the Local Plannign
Authority. The suggested conditions also go beyond the full list of criteria the Council
imposes on construction management conditions used on the very largest major
development sites (where very large construction compunds have to be erected and
massive cranes used; which would not apply to extensions to a family dwellinghouse).
However the Council's ASBI team have highlighted to the Planning team a growing concern
regarding the wide verges in the Gateshill and Copsewood Estates being damaged by
developers and difficulty both ASBI officers and the relevant resident associations for the
two estates have in preventing damage occuring unless some form of pre-commencement
construction management condition is imposed. A bespoke construction management
condition is therefore recommended that does not request details that are disproportionate
to the scale of development or breach the condition tests; but does seek to obtain pre-
commencement clarification of how the grass verge will be protected.

Page 17



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.BE1

PT1.HE1

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Heritage

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM14

BE5

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

LPP 3.5

HDAS-EXT

New development and car parking standards.

New development within areas of special local character

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new
planting and landscaping in development proposals.

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Part 2 Policies:

Trees/Landscaping - No objection and no need for landscaping conditions.

Highways - There is an existing vehicular crossover to the site with a detached garage and
driveway parking. Under the latest proposals the existing garage is to be demolished and
replaced with an integral garage within the new extensions. The changes to the property
are unlikely to create significant levels of additional traffic. The existing crossover is used to
create a hardstanding area where cars can be parked. The new garage can be used for
cycle parking. The existing property should have refuse/recycling storage facilities which
will be used with the extension in place. On the basis of the above comments I do not have
significant highway concerns over the above application.

4.

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

The main issues for consideration in determining this application relate to the effect of the
proposal on the character and appearance of the original dwelling, the impact on the visual
amenities of the surrounding area and the Gatehill Farm Estate Area of Special Local
Character, the impact on residential amenity of the neighbouring dwellings and provision of
acceptable residential amenity for the application property.

Page 18



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
states that all new developments should achieve a high quality of design in all new
buildings and the public realm contributes to community cohesion and a sense of place.
Policies BE5, BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) states that the layout and appearance of new development should
"harmonise with the existing street scene or other features of the area." The NPPF (2012)
notes the importance of achieving design which is appropriate to its context stating that
'Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails to take the
opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it
functions.'

HDAS advises that extensions should always be designed so as to appear 'subordinate' to
the original house. Rear extensions will only be allowed where there is no significant over-
dominance, overshadowing, loss of outlook or daylight. In particular, a two storey rear
extension should not protrude out too far from the rear wall of the original house and should
not extend beyond a 45 degree line of sight from adjacent first floor windows. If this can be
achieved, then the maximum depth of 4 m for a detached property should not be exceeded.
The width of a side extension should be considerably less than the original house and be
between half and two thirds of the main house. Furthermore Policy BE22 requires all two
storey side extensions within the Gatehill Farm Estate to be a minimum of 1.5 m from the
boundary on all levels. The properties within Gatehill Farm are set within spacious plots
and the set in distances assist in retaining this spacious character and visual separation.
For single storey extensions the roof height should not exceed 3.4 m at the highest point.
This proposal is a significant reduction in scale to the previously refused scheme
(28044/APP/2015/4173) and brings almost every aspect of the proposed development
within HDAS guidance. The 3m width of the two storey side extension ensures that a 1.5m
gap is achieved from the side boundary in accordance with Policy BE22.

The only possible deviation from HDAS guidance relates to the single storey element to the
front of the integrated garage. HDAS does not give specific dimension criteria for front
extensions. If the garage projection had been a single storey rear or side extension the roof
form would not have strictly been in compliance with HDAS due to its height and fact that it
extends upto the cill level of the first floor window. To achieve internal floor areas and
sufficient size for the garage a slightly unsual roof form has resulted, including a parapet
feature. In officers view this roof form is not harmful and would be integrated with the large
two storey extension by virtue of the same materials being used. In the context of the
dwelling as a whole this design is not considered unacceptable, not least as the key criteria
officers which wished achieved through the re-submission (strict complaince with policy
BE22) is fully achieved.
Concern has been raised over the extension of the roof form on the right hand side of the
front elevation to replace the current central flat roof dormer of the bathroom. However,
there is no extension of the roof and the flat roof dormer is retained above the main
entrance. 
As such it is considered that the proposal would appear subordinate and would respect the
architectural character and appearance of the original dwelling and the wider area of
Special Local Character. Therefore the proposal would comply with the requirements of
Policies BE5, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and HDAS: Residential Extensions.

Policy BE20 states that buildings should be laid out to allow adequate daylight to penetrate
and amenities of existing houses safeguarded. Both the adjacent properties extend further
to the rear than the application site and the proposed extension would not project further

Page 19



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

HO1

HO2

HO5

Time Limit

Accordance with approved

No additional windows or doors

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 5369/A102 F and
5369/A103 E.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be constructed
in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing 51 and 55 Wieland
Road.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the

1

2

3

RECOMMENDATION 6.

than either of these dwellings. Given the degree of separation, and that the proposed
extensions would not compromise a 45 degree line of sight from the neighbouring
windows, it is considered that the proposed development would not cause any undue loss
of daylight, sunlight or visual intrusion to either of these properties. 

Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
seeks to protect privacy. There are 2 roof windows proposed on the side elevations but as
these will serve bathrooms they could be conditioned to be obscure glazed and fixed shut
below 1.8 m. It is therefore considered there would be no additional loss of privacy to that
already existing. As such, the proposal would comply with the requirements of Policies
BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

Paragraph 5.13 of Residential Extensions. HDAS: Residential Extensions requires
sufficient garden space to be retained as a consequence of an extension. The property is
situated within a spacious plot and adequate garden space would be retained. 

The proposal incorporates a new integral garage which replaces the detached garage to be
demolished and provides a new driveway to the front,  which would accommodate
sufficient parking provision.

Page 20



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES7

HO6

OM19

Materials (Submission)

Obscure Glazing

Construction Management Plan

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces, have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained
as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images. 

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The rooflights facing 51 Wieland Road shall be glazed with permanently obscured glass
and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from internal finished floor level for so
long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit a demolition and
construction management plan to the Local Planning Authority for its approval.  The plan
shall detail:

(i)  Measures to ensure that grass verges and landscaped areas to the front of the
application site are not damaged through the construction process.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of the
demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the wide grass verge and landscaped areas that are an
important visual characteristic of the Gateshill Estate Area of Special local character in
accordance with Policies BE5, BE13 and OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies 2007).

4

5

6

1

INFORMATIVES

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2016).  On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.
Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary
Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

Page 21



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

2

3

4

5

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for
the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right
to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of
the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of
discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy
for London consolidated with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no
damage occurs to the verge of footpaths on private roads during construction.
Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override or cause
damage to a private road and where possible alternative routes should be taken to
avoid private roads. The applicant may be required to make good any damage
caused.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall
only be carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday
and between the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works
shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

AM14

BE5

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

LPP 3.5

HDAS-EX

New development and car parking standards.

New development within areas of special local character

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Page 22



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with
British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's
Best Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction
and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under
Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above,
and by means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

1           The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to 
             all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
             policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
             unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
             Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
             life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
             (prohibition of discrimination). 

Standard Informatives 

AM14

BE5

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

New development and car parking standards.

New development within areas of special local character

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

2 

PT1.BE1

PT1.HE1

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

Part 1 Policies:

Page 23



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE24

BE38

LPP 3.5

HDAS-EXT

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision
of new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

3          You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
            approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
            be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any 
            deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local 
            Planning Authority.

4          You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
            by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
            application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
            development that results in any form of encroachment.

5          Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
            Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
            such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
            or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
            installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
            works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
            Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
            completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
            approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
            advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building Control,
            3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6          You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension. 
            When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
            neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at 
            any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
            vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved 
            are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
            adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
            control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
            Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
            contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
            Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

Page 24



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7          The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
            agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
             - carry out work to an existing party wall;
             - build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
             - in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
               building.
            Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
            owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. 
            The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
            necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by 
            the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
            comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
            in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
            available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
            Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8          Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
            property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission 
            does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the 
            specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
            should consult a solicitor.

9          Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
            Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
            particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

            A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
            hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours 
            of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
            Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

            B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
            British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

            C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public 
            health nuisance.

            D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

            You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
            Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek 
            prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate 
            any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
            hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
            adjoining premises.

10        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
            pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take 
            appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in 
            action being taken under the Highways Act.

Page 25



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Liz Arnold 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

11        To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
            methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
            resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
            including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
            insulation.

12        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
            construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
            or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made 
            good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
            information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central 
            Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
            Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Page 26



Shelter

Posts

E
L
G

O
O

D

61

5
9

45

16

2

1

6
5

3
0

24

HILLSIDE ROAD

Posts

A
V

E
N

U
E

W
IE

LAND R
OAD

53

84.4m

63

LB

87.8m

Hurley

W
A

Y

N
O

R
T

H
W

O
O

D

D
ra

in

43

The End House

84.1m

20

25

13

49

Pincio

14

6
5

45

Drain

4
0

Ellesselle

´

January 

2018

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

53 Weiland Road 

Northwood

North Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

28044/APP/2017/2249

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

MIDHURST COTTAGE HIGH ROAD EASTCOTE 

Part single and part two storey rear extension.

12/10/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 73006/APP/2017/3705

Drawing Nos: ZS.PA.2017.A102 Rev P02

ZS.PA.2017.A103 Rev P02

ZS.PA.2017.A104 Rev P02

ZS.PA.2017.A101 Rev P01

Location Plan

Date Plans Received: 11/10/2017Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The application site comprises a detached property situated on the North side of High Road
with the principal elevation facing South East. There are a total of 8 properties here fronting
the High Road which run in a slight stagger to one another with some having been
extended over the years, whilst others have not. The property is a brick built two storey
dwelling set under a main hipped roof. To one side is an integral garage set under a cat-
slide roof projecting down from the main roof which also has a dormer window under a flat
roof set in this roof slope. There is a small roof canopy cover over the front entrance. To
the front is a good sized garden area which is laid to lawn and a hard-standing driveway
leading to the garage. To the rear is a small patio section and a landscaped rear garden
surrounded by mature trees and hedges with the majority laid to lawn. 

The adjacent property to the South West, Long Meadow, has a single storey rear extension
with a pitched roof that extends beyond the rear elevation of the application site. To the
North East, Wynnstay has a rear conservatory. The street scene is residential in character
and appearance comprising on the whole detached properties of varying design and styles
in good size plots.   

The application site is located within the Developed Area as identified in the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012).

The application is seeking planning permission for a two storey rear extension. 

The submitted plans illustrate that the proposal will extend to 6 metres at ground floor level
across the full width of the rear elevation and a maximum of 4 metres at first floor level.
The first floor rear elevation has now been reduced in width to 5.74 metres which is now
set in by 4 metres from the North East corner. The single storey element is set under a flat
roof 3 metre high.  

1. CONSIDERATIONS  

1.1 Site and Locality  

1.2 Proposed Scheme  

12/10/2017Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 8

Page 29



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

73006/APP/2017/2414 - Single storey rear extension with 2 roof lanterns above measuring
6 metres deep, no wider than the existing house and 3 metres high with a flat roof. The
single storey rear extension would be set in 1.9 m from the side boundaries. The proposal
comprises a kitchen/dining room and materials would match the existing house. 
Approved at Committee on 14.09.2017.

It is noted that the ground floor element has already been granted planning permission
under reference, 73006/APP/2017/2414.

Not applicable 

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

5 neighbouring properties along with Northwood Hills and Eastcote Residents Association
were notified of the proposed development by letter on 19.10.2017. A site notice was
displayed to the front of the site on 27.10.2017.

By the close of the consultation period 2 neighbouring residents had objected to the
proposed development and a petition with 33 signatures was received which objects to the
proposal and asks for it to be refused. 
 
The objections can be summarised as the following:
- the single storey rear extension was approved by the Planning Committee despite
objections from the immediate neighbours and the majority of the residents in Larkswood
Rise and High Road.
- in the presentation to Committee for the last application it was stated that this was likely to
be but the beginning of several further planning applications. 
- this would result in over development of the site. 
- if the planing applications had been submitted all together this would have been refused -
'planning by stealth'.
- hope that this extensive building programme is not permitted thus preventing spoiling a
rural environment which the residents of Larkswood Rise and High Road Eastcote have
preserved.
- inaccuracies in the drawings/statements.
- matching the existing bricks should be old London stocks. 
- 2nd storey will extend beyond the adjacent corner of our house and the bulk mass will
increase the impact considerably. 
- new 1st floor window on the side adjacent to Long Meadow which will cause overlooking
and privacy issues. 
- Wynnstay, South Lawn and Eversholt are also impacted by removal of trees and
overdominance of the new building with loss of light to Wynnstay. 

73006/APP/2017/2414 Midhurst Cottage High Road Eastcote 

Single storey rear extension.

12-09-2017Decision Date: Approved

1.3 Relevant Planning History  

Comment on Planning History  

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Appeal: 

Page 30



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

HDAS-EXT

BE4

BE13

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Part 2 Policies:

- proposed crown roof will change the existing character of the house and road and allow
further extension into the loft.

OFFICER COMMENTS:
These objections are duly noted and the relevant planning matters will be considered in the
main body of the report below. It should be noted that this application seeks planning
permission for a 'two storey rear extension' and as the plans illustrate, includes the ground
floor extension. Therefore in determining this application the existing grant of planning
permission will be a material planning consideration. It is also considered that the proposed
plans are sufficient for the appropriate examination of the proposal. In addition amended
drawings were received which remove the crown roof element to the proposal, which in
turn reduced the overall size and scale. 

INTERNAL COMMENTS

Conservation - No objections:
This application would have no bearing upon the nearby Eastcote Village Conservation
Area.

Officer comment. The site is outside the Conservation Area whose boundary is on the
other side of High Road at the front of the property. Even if Policy BE4 were to be applied,
and which reflects the relevant legal duties and assessments of impacts upon the settings
of such areas, this is for a proposal to the rear of the property.

Trees - No objections:
This site is occupied by a two-storey detached house on the North side of High Road.
There are no tree, or landscape designations affecting the site, although it lies immediately
to the North of Eastcote Village Conservation Area.
Comment: This site was the subject of a previous application, ref. 2017/2414, which was
approved. The response to the planning questionnaire (Q7) states that no trees will be
affected by the development. However, site photographs (from the previous application)
indicate that there are trees / tall hedge to the rear / side boundary which will be close to
the proposed extension. These trees should be protected from accidental damage during
the construction operations. 
Recommendations: No objection subject to conditions RES8 and RES10.

4.

Page 31



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

AM7

AM14

LPP 3.5

LPP 5.3

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

(2016) Sustainable design and construction

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

The main issues to be considered are the effect of the proposal on the character and
appearance of the original building, its impact on the surrounding area, any potential
impacts on the amenities of the adjoining occupiers and the requirements of future
occupants of the dwelling.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. 

Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part two (Saved UDP Policies) requires alterations
and extensions to existing buildings to harmonise with the scale, form and architectural
composition of the original building. Policy BE13 requires the layout and appearance of
extensions to harmonise with the existing street scene and Policy BE19 ensures any new
development complements or improves the amenity and character of the area.

The Council's Adopted SPD the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential
Extensions (December 2008) or HDAS, contains design guidance (below) for all types of
extensions which should appear subordinate in scale to the original building.

Paragraphs 6.2 and 6.3 of the HDAS SPD specify that any two storey/first floor rear
extension will only be considered where they do not extend beyond a 45 degree line of sight
taken from the nearest of the first floor window of any room of the neighbouring properties.
Paragraph 6.4 of the HDAS SPD specifies that where the 45 degree line of sight criteria
can be met, then two storey rear extensions at detached properties should not exceed a
maximum depth of 4 metre. Paragraph 6.6 of the HDAS states the height of the extension
should not normally exceed the height of the existing building. The roof lines of the
extension should normally be parallel to those of the existing building and the eaves line.

The proposal has been revised and amended drawings submitted which illustrate the
complete removal of the crown roof element and reduction in the width at first floor level.
The submitted plans illustrate that the proposal will extend to 6 metres at ground floor level
across the full width of the rear elevation and a maximum of 4 metres at first floor level.
The first floor rear elevation has now been reduced in width to 5.74 metres which is now

Page 32



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

set in by 4 metres from the North East corner. The single storey element is set under a flat
roof 3 metre high.  It is noted that the ground floor element has already been granted
planning permission under reference, 73006/APP/2017/2414. The previous officer's report
confirms that adjoining properties have been extended to the rear or have single storey
extensions that extend beyond the rear elevation of Midhurst Cottage. Taking into
consideration the overall size, scale, orientation height, design and the 1.9 m set in from
the side boundaries, the proposal would not result in an unacceptable impact on Long
Meadow or Wynnstay in terms of overdominance, overshadowing, loss of light and loss of
outlook. As such, the proposed single storey extension is considered to have an
acceptable impact on the residential amenities of the occupiers of adjoining properties.

As this part of the proposal remains unchanged it is once again considered that this
element is acceptable. This would now also have to be considered in relation to the new
first floor element proposed under this application. The first floor element is in accordance
with HDAS requirements as it would extend to a maximum of 4 metre from the rear
elevation. This would not run the full width and would now only be 5.74 metres wide which
would ensure it would be set in from the North East corner by 4 metres. This ensures that
the proposal would not impinge any of the 45 degree lines taken from either neighbouring
property. 

The roof form has now also been significantly revised and importantly the crown roof
element has been removed together with the reduction in width at first floor level. This
results in a much more sympathetic design which maintains the integrity of the original
dwelling. 

On balance it is considered that the proposed extension taken in its entirety would not
represent a visually over-dominant or unsympathetic form of development that would
detract from the character, appearance and architectural composition of the original house.
The proposal would therefore be in compliance with Policy BE1 of the Council's Local Plan:
Part 1 - Strategic Policies and the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) BE13, BE15, BE19 and BE21 of Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012) Policies. 

Policy BE20 requires any new development to be laid out so as to protect the daylight and
sunlight levels of existing houses. Policy BE21 requires new extensions by virtue of their
siting, bulk and proximity to not result in a significant loss of residential amenity to
neighbouring properties and Policy BE24 should protect the privacy of the occupiers and
their neighbours. 

Given that the proposal complies with the guidance related to height, depth and set-in
dimensions specified in the HDAS SPD, it is considered that the proposal would not result
in any unacceptable impact on the residential amenities of the neighbouring dwellings to
the south and to the north by reason of over-dominance, overshadowing, visual intrusion,
loss of light and outlook. In addition the proposed windows on the side elevations facing
both Long Meadow and Wynnstay would serve en-suite bathrooms only and can therefore
be conditioned to be permanently obscurely glazed. It is considered that the proposal would
therefore not have any detrimental harm on the residential amenities of the occupiers of the
neighbouring properties, and would accord with Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms, and those altered by the extension,
would maintain an adequate outlook and source of natural light, therefore complying with

Page 33



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

HO1

HO2

HO4

Time Limit

Accordance with approved

Materials

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plan, numbers ZS.PA.2017.A102 Rev
P02, ZS.PA.2017.A103 Rev P02, ZS.PA.2017.A104 Rev P02.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building and shall thereafter be
retained as such.

REASON
To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing building
in accordance with Policy BE15 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies

1

2

3

RECOMMENDATION 6.

the Mayor of London's Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March
2016).

Policy BE23 states all extensions should provide or maintain external amenity area which
is sufficient to serve the occupants of the property in terms of its size and usability. The
application site would maintain a rear amenity area of well over 100 square metres to
continue to accord with Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and to the Council's Supplementary Planning Documents HDAS
Residential Extensions (December 2008).

The parking provision remains unchanged and therefore would continue to accord with
Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two: Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and to the Council's Supplementary Planning Documents HDAS Residential Extensions
(December 2008).

Given the above considerations, this application is considered to be acceptable and is
therefore recommended for approval, subject to conditions. Given the significant alterations
which have now been granted at the application site it is considered necessary to impose a
separate condition restricting any further development under permitted development
hereafter.

Page 34



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

HO7

RES10

RES8

No roof gardens

Tree to be retained

Tree Protection

(November 2012).

Access to the flat roof over the extension hereby approved shall be for maintenance or
emergency purposes only and the flat roof shall not be used as a roof garden, terrace,
balcony, patio or similar amenity area.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan(s) shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during (or after) construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying, another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a
position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size
and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in
the first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of
the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of
remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs' 
Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON
To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Such fencing should
be a minimum height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved

4

5

6

Page 35



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES14

NONSC

Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Non Standard Condition

details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.
The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:
2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;
2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;
2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.
2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.
2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification); no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor extension or
roof alteration to any dwellinghouse(s) shall be erected without the grant of further specific
permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers
in accordance with policies BE13, BE21, BE23 and BE24 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Prior to commencement, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall clearly demonstrate how it incorporates sustainable urban drainage (SuDs)
in accordance with the hierarchy set out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan and will:
i. provide information on all SuDs features including the method employed to delay and
control the surface water discharged from the site and:
ii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including
appropriate details of Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification.
The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:
iii. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater; and how rain
and grey water will be recycled and reused in the development

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), Policies 5.12, 5.13 and 5.15 of the
London Plan (March 2016), National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), and the
Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014).

7

8

Page 36



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

1

2

3

INFORMATIVES

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2016).  On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.
Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary
Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway
repairs, including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no
damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering
materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to the public
footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the satisfaction of the
Council and at the applicant's expense. 

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations,
Central Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall
only be carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday
and between the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works
shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with
British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's
Best Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction
and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under
Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above,
and by means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

1           The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to 
             all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
             policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
             unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically

Standard Informatives 

Page 37



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

             Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
             life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
             (prohibition of discrimination). 

HDAS-EXT

BE4

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

AM7

AM14

LPP 3.5

LPP 5.3

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

(2016) Sustainable design and construction

3          You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
            approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
            be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any 
            deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local 
            Planning Authority.

4          You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
            by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
            application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
            development that results in any form of encroachment.

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

2 

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

Part 1 Policies:

Page 38



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

5          Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
            Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
            such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
            or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
            installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
            works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
            Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
            completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
            approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
            advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building Control,
            3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6          You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension. 
            When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
            neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at 
            any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
            vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved 
            are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
            adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
            control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
            Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
            contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
            Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7          The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
            agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
             - carry out work to an existing party wall;
             - build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
             - in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
               building.
            Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
            owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. 
            The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
            necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by 
            the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
            comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
            in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
            available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
            Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8          Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
            property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission 
            does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the 
            specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
            should consult a solicitor.

9          Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
            Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
            particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

            A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the

Page 39



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Hardeep Ryatt 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

            hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours 
            of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
            Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

            B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
            British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

            C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public 
            health nuisance.

            D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

            You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
            Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek 
            prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate 
            any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
            hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
            adjoining premises.

10        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
            pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take 
            appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in 
            action being taken under the Highways Act.

11        To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
            methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
            resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
            including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
            insulation.

12        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
            construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
            or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made 
            good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
            information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central 
            Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
            Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Page 40



Windsor House

44.5m

Pinova

U
n

d

Und

CS

C
H

G
L

 A
s

ly
 C

o
n

s
t 

&
 L

B
 B

d
y

C
H

U
n

d

U
n

d

C
F

Ward Bdy

C
W

River Pinn

Eversholt

The Cottage

EASTCOTE

THE CIRCUITS

Long

Midhurst

36

7

Tree

Birchmead

LA
R
K
S
W

O
O

D

The Glen

Tops

R
IS

E
HIG

H R
OAD

Thorney

Conway

2

3
1

26

Cotswold

Hascombe

Marlborough

Wynnstay

14

Lawn

Meadow

HIGH ROAD

Cottage

Cottage

12

6

C
H

E
N

E
YS
T
R

E
E

T

H
IL

L

28

Applegarth

N
o

rth
s
id

e

Lodge

D
a
n
e
m

e
a
d

Pinn

45.4m

Mistletoe Farm

Blendworth

 CLOSE

EASTCOTE

Cottage

50.0m

Langside

ig
h

Drain

Spindle

Post

C
U

C
K

O
O

Cottage

El Sub Sta

South

2

5

15

T
re

e
 T

o
p
s

New Lodge

Woodberry

44.7m

44.9m

´

January 2017

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

Midhurst Cottage

High Road

North Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

73006/APP/2017/3705

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

8 MONKS CLOSE RUISLIP  

Conversion of dwelling into 1 x 1-bed and 1 x studio self-contained flats with
associated parking and amenity space, involving part two storey, part single
storey rear extension.

27/09/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 72216/APP/2017/3508

Drawing Nos: ASB420-05FPA
Location Plan
ASB420-04FPA
ASB420-03FPA
ASB420-02FPA
ASB420-01FPA

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The application has been referred to Committee as a result of receipt of a petition
opposing the development containing 41 signatures.

The principle of development is considered to be acceptable. The development will deliver
a suitable level of amenity for future occupiers. However, the proposal, by reason of the
erection of a rear extension, will result material loss of amenity for occupiers of the
attached dwelling, No.7 Monks Close.  

In addition, use of the front amenity space for more intensive car parking would be harmful
to the character of the area given that the soft landscaped front gardens are integral part
of the character of Monks Close. It has also not been demonstrated that the proposal
would not increase flood risk.

It is recommended that planning permission is refused.

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2

NON2

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by virtue of the size and scale of the proposed single storey
rear extension is considered to harm the residential amenities of the existing neighbouring
occupiers of No 7 Monks Close.  In particular, the development is considered to give rise
to issues in relation to loss of sunlight and daylight, over-dominance and loss of outlook.
Therefore the proposal would be contrary to policies BE19, BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Council's
adopted Supplementary Planning Documents HDAS: Residential Extensions and HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

Use of the front garden area for more intensive car parking would be harmful to the

1

2

2. RECOMMENDATION 

12/10/2017Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 9

Page 43



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

character of the area given that the soft landscaped front gardens are integral part of the
character of Monks Close. It is considereds that the loss of soft landscaping to create
additional parking would be detrimental to the character and appearance of the
streetscene and would be contrary to Policies BE13, BE19 and BE38 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies and inappropriate in terms of the guidance set
out in the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residental
Extensions (2008) and Residential Layout (2006)

The site lies in Flood Zone 2.  In the absence of a submitted Flood Risk Assessment
(FRA), it has not been demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority,
that the development does not increase the risk of flooding.  In the absence of a FRA the
development is considered to be contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk
Management of the London Plan (2016),  National Planning Policy Framework (March
2012) and the Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014).

3

I59

I52

I53

Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

3

INFORMATIVES

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated
with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

HDAS-EXT

**

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008
Pt 1.10 To seek to ensure that development does not adversely
affect the amenity and the character of the area 
Pt 1.16 To seek to ensure enough of new residential units are
designed to wheelchair and mobility standards
Pt 1.17 To seek to ensure the highest acceptable number of new
dwellings are provided in the form of affordable housing
Pt 1.26 To encourage economic and urban regeneration in the

Page 44



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

4

3.1 Site and Locality

The site is a two-storey semi-detached dwelling. The principle elevation of the property
faces South East. The counterpart, No. 7 Monks Close lies to the South West of the
application site. Each property has existing single storey rear elements.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal involves conversion of the dwelling into 1 x 1-bed and 1 x studio self-
contained flats with associated parking and amenity space, involving part two storey, part
single storey rear extension.  The ground floor rear extension would be 4 metres deep and

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority considers that it has complied
with the requirements of paragraphs 186 and 187 of the NPPF.   The Local Planning
Authority encourages pre-application dialogue.  None took place in this case.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

AM13

BE15

BE18

BE19

BE38

AM14

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

HDAS

HDAS-LAY

NPPF

NPPF1

NPPF7

Hayes/West Drayton Corridor, designated Industrial and Business
Areas (IBA's) and other appropriate locations
Pt 1.39 To seek where appropriate planning obligations to achieve
benefits to the community related to the scale and type of
development proposed.
AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
New development and car parking standards.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Residential Developments

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006
National Planning Policy Framework

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Requiring good design

Page 45



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

72216/APP/2016/3444 - In 2016 an application was submitted under the Prior Approval
scheme for erection of a single storey rear extension, which would extend beyond the rear
wall of the original house by 4 metres, for which the maximum height would be 2.95
metres, and for which the height of the eaves would be 2.95 metres.   It was resolved that
Prior Approval was required and was refused for the following reason-  

"The proposed development does not constitute permitted development by virtue of the
provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1, Class A of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, as the proposed development would
unduly detract from the amenities of the adjoining occupier, at 7 Monks Close by reason of
visual intrusion, overdominance, overshadowing, loss of daylight, loss of sunlight and loss
of outlook."

72216/APP/2016/3436 - Certificate of Lawful Proposed Development - Conversion of
roofspace to habitable use to include a side dormer and new window in existing rear gable
(Approved). Officer comment: This has not been implemented.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

the first floor rear extension would be 3 metres deep.   The ground floor rear extension
would be across the complete width of the host dwelling and would link to the existing
side/rear  extension.  It would be 3 metres high with a flat roof.  The first floor extension
would be approximately 6.5 metres high with a pitched roof which following the angle of the
host dwelling.  The ground floor unit would have an area of approximately 72 square metres
and the first floor unit a floor area of 57 square metres.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

72216/APP/2016/3436

72216/APP/2016/3444

72216/APP/2017/2443

8 Monks Close Ruislip  

8 Monks Close Ruislip  

8 Monks Close Ruislip  

Conversion of roofspace to habitable use to include a side dormer and new window in existing rear

gable (Application for a Certificate of Lawful Development for a Proposed Development)

Erection of a single storey rear extension, which would extend beyond the rear wall of the original

house by 4 metres, for which the maximum height would be 2.95 metres, and for which the height

of the eaves would be 2.95 metres

GF & 2 storey rear extension

05-10-2016

27-10-2016

25-07-2017

Decision: 

Decision: 

Decision: 

Approved

Refused

NFA

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 46



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

HDAS-EXT

**

AM13

BE15

BE18

BE19

BE38

AM14

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

HDAS

HDAS-LAY

NPPF

NPPF1

NPPF7

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Pt 1.10 To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity
and the character of the area 
Pt 1.16 To seek to ensure enough of new residential units are designed to
wheelchair and mobility standards
Pt 1.17 To seek to ensure the highest acceptable number of new dwellings are
provided in the form of affordable housing
Pt 1.26 To encourage economic and urban regeneration in the Hayes/West
Drayton Corridor, designated Industrial and Business Areas (IBA's) and other
appropriate locations
Pt 1.39 To seek where appropriate planning obligations to achieve benefits to the
community related to the scale and type of development proposed.

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people with
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

New development and car parking standards.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Residential Developments

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

National Planning Policy Framework

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Requiring good design

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Page 47



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Not applicable 5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

Highways and Traffic - This application is for the conversion of an existing dwelling into 2 flats (1b+1
studio) in Monks Close Ruislip. Monks Close is a local road in Ruislip and has a PTAL value of 2
(poor) which suggests there will be a strong reliance on private cars for trips making. The existing
property has a vehicular crossover leading to off-street car parking. There is evidence of parking
stress in Monks Close as not all properties have off-street car parking facilities. The proposals
include 2 off-street car parking spaces provided in the front garden using the existing crossover to
serve both flats. There are cycle stands shown on the drawing along with bin storage.  The officer
would like secure covered cycle storage for 2 cycles to be conditioned along with refuse/recycling
bin storage for both flats.  The applicant should also be made aware of the Council's Front Garden
Guidance when developing the front garden for car parking. There will be a very small increase in
traffic as a result of the proposed development but the change will not be likely to be significant. On
the basis of the above comments there are no significant highway concerns over the above
application. 

Trees and Landscape - This site is occupied by a two-storey semi-detached house on the North-
West side of Monks Close. According to the aerial photographs the front garden is predominantly
soft landscaped with a modest area of hard-standing for parking off-street. There are no tree /
landscape constraints affecting the site.  There is no objection to the single-storey extension to the

External Consultees

Neighbours were notified on 16/10/2017 and a site notice was displayed on 19/10/2017.  

By the end of the consultation period a petition containing 41 signatures and two objections were
received.

These raised the following issues -

(1) Out of keeping with character of area.
(2) Visual intrusion, over-dominance and over-shadowing of attached dwelling.
(3) Loss of sunlight to living room and kitchen.
(4) Plan does not take account of  previous permission which allows for conversion of the loft to
habitable accommodation, therefore it may be sub-divided into more than 2 flats.
(5) The site is in Flood Zone 2 and no flood risk assessment has been submitted.
(6) Noise and disturbance. 
(7) There is a joint sewerage system, the safety of which may be compromised.
(8) No site notice displayed.

South Ruislip Residents Association - No comments received.

Officer comments - The matters raised are considered throughout the report.   The previous
permission referred to is a Certificate of Lawful Proposed Development.   Since this relates to
permitted development rights which apply to a single dwelling house, it could not be implemented
were the conversion to be undertaken.  If it were undertaken prior to the conversion into flats, that
scheme could not be implemented in accordance with the current proposals were this to be
approved.  The safety of the sewerage system is a private matter.    A site notice was displayed.

Page 48



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states there is a presumption in favour of
sustainable development which is described for decision taking as "approving development
proposals which accord with the development plan." As a core planning principle the
effective use of land is encouraged by reusing land that has been previously developed
(Brownfield land). 

The proposed site currently comprises a semi-detached dwelling within the developed
area.   This constitutes 'previously developed land'. There is a presumption expressed in
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) in favour of residential development on
previously developed (Brownfield) land subject to other material planning considerations.

There are, in principle, no objections to the principle of development of the site, subject to
all other material planning considerations being acceptable in accordance with the
Hillingdon

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2016) seeks to ensure that new development 'takes into
account local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and that public
transport capacity development should optimise housing output for different types of
location within. the relevant density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals that
compromise this policy should be resisted'.

The density matrix, however, is only of limited value when looking at small scale
development such as that proposed with this application. In such cases, it is often more
appropriate to consider how the development harmonises with its surroundings and its
impact on adjoining occupiers.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Paragraph 56 of the Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (March 2012) states: "The

rear and conversion of the house to flats. However, there is an objection to the total coverage of the
front garden to provide two off-street parking bays. In reality, if double parked there will be space for
at least four cars. The conversion of the front garden will be detrimental to the character and
appearance of the area. 
This application would be acceptable if the front garden parking can be amended and PD rights
removed - to prevent the proliferation of hard-standing. If this matter can be addressed conditions
RES9 (parts 1, 2, 4 and 5) should be imposed. 

Access Officer - No objection.

Flood and Water Management - This proposal involves the subdivision of an existing dwelling to
create a new dwelling. This site lies in flood zone 2 and is in an area at surface water flood risk.
Therefore the sequential test is required and a Flood Risk Assessment should be submitted.

MoD Safeguarding - No comments received.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 49



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Government attaches great importance to the design of the built environment. Good design
is a key aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good planning, and should
contribute positively to making places better for people". 

Paragraph 64 of the NPPF states that "permission should be refused for development of
poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and
quality of an area and the way it functions".

Policy 7.1 of the London Plan states that "design of new buildings and the spaces they
create should help reinforce or enhance the character, legibility, permeability and
accessibility of the neighbourhood".

Policy 7.4 of the London Plan states, "Development should have regard to the form,
function, and structure of an area, place or street and the scale, mass and orientation of
surrounding buildings. It should improve an area's visual or physical connection with natural
features. In areas of poor or ill-defined character, development should build on the positive
elements that can contribute to establishing an enhanced character for the future function
of the area".

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Policy BE13 of The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) states development will not be permitted if the
layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the existing street scene or other features of
the area which the local planning authority considers it desirable to retain or enhance.

Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states "the local planning authority will seek to ensure that new development within
residential areas complements or improves the amenity and character of the area".

Paragraph 4.37 of the HDAS Residential Layouts states: "Where parking is located to the
front of the building, careful consideration must be given to the boundary treatment of the
site and the retention of mature and semi-mature trees (these will need space to grow).
Walls, fences and additional landscape can assist in screening car car parking areas, but
the design of the boundaries should be considered carefully, in order to avoid an adverse
impact on the quality of the street scene and visual permeability into the site. Car parking at
the front of buildings will not always be achievable, as a result of retaining and enhancing
the local character of the area."

Paragraph 11.2 of the HDAS: Residential Extensions gives guidance on how car parking in
front gardens should be approached. It states the importance of avoiding losing the feeling
of enclosure and definition between pavement and private space. Under HDAS the Council
would normally expect at least 25% of the front garden to be maintained for soft
landscaping and planting.

Part of the intrinsic character of Monks Close is the long grass front gardens. The Council
cannot allow a tandem parking arrangement for a flatted development (as the different
occupiers of each unit would normally be unrelated persons). To accomodate spaces
adjacent to each other a substantial part of the soft landascaping to the front garden needs
to be removed. 
Whilst the rear extensions are considered to have a low impact on the character of the
area, the intensity of parking to the front is considered to be harmful to the character and

Page 50



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

appearance of the street scene and in this case it is not considered that this harm could be
overcome by use of plannign conditions.

The SPD: Hillingdon Design and Access Statement: Residential Extensions (HDAS) sets
out criteria to be applied to rear single-storey extensions. Paragraph 3.6 states a flat roof
extension should not exceed 3 m high. The plans show the extension would be 2.95 m
high, thereby being marginally lower than the guidance figure in the HDAS. 

Paragraph 3.3 states that for a semi-detached house on a plot more than 5 m wide a
single storey  extension of up to 3.6 m deep is acceptable. Paragraph 6.4 states similar
guidance for a two-storey rear extension.  Paragraphs 3.1 and 6.2 explain that an extension
should not protrude out too far from the wall of the original house. This is because the
extension may block daylight and sunlight received by neighbouring properties. The
proposed ground floor extension is 4 metres deep. In this case there is what appears be
kitchen and lounge window and door opening son the rear elevation of the neighbouring
property.  It is considered that a 4m deep rear extension will result in material loss of
daylight and sunlight to the neighbouring property. No side windows are proposed in the
extension and therefore it is considered that no issues of material loss of privacy arise.  In
terms of the impact of the first floor extension, this will be 3 metres deep and does not
conflict with 45 degree lines due to its central location away from the boundariues with
neighbouring properties and is considered to be in compliance with HDAS guidance.The
two storey element is well below the ridge height of the main dwelling and is considered to
form a subordinate addition.  

The proposed development is separated from No. 9 Monks Close by an existing single-
storey extension and no adverse amenity issues arise with regard to this property. Nos 10
and 12 Downbarns Road are to the rear of the application site and are a substantial
distance away. No adverse amenity issues arise in that regard either.

Noise and Disturbance

The proposal includes a studio flat at first floor.  This area is currently bedroom space and
would now be used as a lounge/living area if the proposal is accepted.  It is likely, due to the
design of these properties, that No. 7 Monks Close will have bedrooms which adjoin the
proposed unit.   This raises the potential for a higher level of noise and disturbance for
occupiers of No. 7 by reason of an increase in activity.  If permission had been granted
conditions could have been imposed requiring noise mitigation measures.  

Conclusion

In conclusion, it is considered that the ground floor extension would unduly detract from the
amenities of the adjoining occupier, at 7 Monks Close by reason of visual intrusion, over-
dominance, overshadowing, loss of daylight, loss of sunlight and loss of outlook.

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015 and they
have been adopted by The Mayor of London in the form of Housing Standards Minor
Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016). This sets out how the existing policies
relating to Housing Standards in The London Plan should be applied from March 2016.
Table 3.3 sets out how the minimum space standards stemming from the policy specified

Page 51



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.10

7.11

7.12

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

in the 2012 Housing SPG should be interpreted in relation to the national standards.

The minimum space requires a one bedroom 2 person dwelling to have a minimum floor
area of 50 square metres, including storage and a one bedroom 1 person dwelling to have
a floor area of 39 square metres square metres, including storage.  The proposal involves
floorspace for each dwelling which significantly exceeds this requirement. Although storage
is not explicitly shown, it would appear that this could be provided without compromising
the usable space.

It is considered that most of the proposed habitable rooms would enjoy an adequate
outlook and source of natural light, therefore complying with the Mayor of London's Housing
Standards Minor Alterations to the London Plan (March 2016).

As such it is considered that the proposal would provide an indoor living area of an
appropriate size for the occupiers of the two proposed dwellings. The proposal would
therefore provide an acceptable level  of living accommodation for future occupiers and
accords with the Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016).

Outdoor Amenity Space:

The SPD HDAS: Residential Layouts includes in paragraph 4.17 minimum amenity space
standards for private amenity space. A studio or a one bedroom flat should have a
minimum space of 20 square metres.    The submitted drawings show that each of the
proposed dwellings will be provided with a private amenity space which would exceed the
Council's minimum standard. This is through sub-division of the existing garden.   The
space appears to be accessible and usable. 
The intensity of use appears likely to be low and no issues of loss of amenity for
neighbours is considered to arise.  The proposal therefore provides amenity space of
sufficient size and quality commensurate to the size and layout of the dwellings. As such
the proposal would provide an appropriate level of amenity for future residents in
accordance with Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local plan - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan
Policies (November 2012) considers whether the traffic generated by proposed
developments is acceptable in terms of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic
flows and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

Policy AM14 states that new development will only be permitted where it is in accordance
with the Council's adopted Car Parking Standards. 

The proposal would not give rise to an unacceptable increase in traffic movements and
provides an acceptable level fo off street parking.

The conversion has no specific urban design implications.  The proposed rear extension
cannot be viewed from the street and is unlikely to have wider visual impacts when viewed
from the rear of other neighbouring properties.  The impact is considered to be solely on
No.7 Monks Close as explained elsewhere in the report.

Page 52



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

Not applicable to this application.

The application is below the threshold at which affordable housing should be sought under
Policy 3A.10 of the London Plan and the Council's adopted Planning Obligations SPD, nor
is it considered that a higher level of development could be achieved on this site.

Accordingly, the proposal does not give rise to the need for affordable housing provision for
a development of this size and consideration of these matters is not necessary.

No trees or ecology would be affected by the proposals. However the loss of existing soft
landscaping would be harmful to character and appearance of the streetscene, as
explained elsewhere in the report.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

This proposal involves the subdivision of an exisiting dwelling to create a new dwelling. This
site lies in flood zone 2 and is in an area at surface water flooding risk. In cases where
additional residential units are created in a flood zone, for safety reasons, it is essential that
flood risk is fully considered. As such a sequential test is required and a Flood Risk
Assessment. No such information has been provided.

noise is dealt with eleswhere in the report. Air Quality; Not applicable.

These are referred to and summarised under 'External Consultees' and addressed
elsewhere in the report.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012),
requires that where developments generate the need for additional facilities, financial
contributions will be sought. Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations 2011. The
Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st 2014 and the
Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of additional
floorspace. This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £35 per sq metre.

It applies where a proposal would result in an increase in a gross internal floorspace of 100
metres square or more or where a proposal would create 1 or more residential units.

The proposal produces a net increase of 123 square metres.  Presently calculated the
proposal would attract a CIL Liability of:

Hillingdon CIL £2,655.19

London Mayoral CIL £1,039.64

Page 53



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Total CIL £3,694.83

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.
 
Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned. 
 
Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.
 
Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.
 
Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).
 
Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in

Page 54



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The principle of development on this previously developed land is considered to be
acceptable.  It is considered that the development will deliver a suitable level of amenity for
future occupiers both in terms of exceeding minimum space standards and provision of
private amenity space.     However, the proposal, by reason of the erection of a rear
extension, will result in a material loss of amenity for occupiers of the adjoining dwelling,
No. 7 Monks Close.  

In addition, use of the front amenity space for more intensive car parking would be harmful
to the character of the area as it has not been demonstrated that a suitable level of soft
landscape could be retained.  

The site is within Flood Zone 2 and, in the absence of a Flood Risk Assessment, it has also
not been demonstrated that the proposal would not increase flood risk 

It is recommended that planning permission is refused.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (2016)
The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)
Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon
National Planning Policy Framework

Cris Lancaster 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 55



1b

1a

Churc
h

1c

1d

11

1

1

8

6

A
B

B
O

T
 C

L
O

S
E

eth
odis

t
th

 R
uis

lip

58

2

33

43

68

21

35.4m

162

80

ESS

12

32

19
13

13

DOW
N B

ARNS R
OAD

20

22

34

27 B
R

A
C

K
E

N
B

R
ID

G
E

 D
R

IV
E

20

26

194

196

191

22

LO
NG

 D
RIV

E

1

M
O

NKS C
LOSE

225

164

6

10

180

35.4m

Deane P
ark

Hall

´

January 2017

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

8 Monks Close

Ruislip

North Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

72216/APP/2017/3508

Page 56



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

4 ASHBURTON ROAD RUISLIP  

Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension, single storey front
extension and conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear
dormer and conversion of dwelling from 1 x 4-bed to 3 x 2-bed and 1 x 1-bed
self-contained flats with associated parking and amenity space and
installation of vehicular crossover to front.

05/10/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 15579/APP/2017/3615

Drawing Nos: 4AshburtonRd/2017/03 Rev A
4AshburtonRd/2017/02 Rev A
4AshburtonRd/2017/01 Rev A
Location Plan 19.12.2017
Compliance Statement
Design & Access Statement

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for a part two storey, part single storey
side/rear extension, single storey front extension and conversion of roof space to habitable
use to include a rear dormer and conversion of the existing dwelling ( 1 x 4-bed) to 2 x 2-
bed and 2 x 1-bed self-contained flats with associated parking and amenity space and
installation of vehicular crossover to front.

Having examined the proposal it is considered that the proposal is unacceptable for a
number of reasons. The proposed side and rear extension, by reason of its siting in this
open prominent position and in particular the crown roof design, would fail to harmonise
with the architectural composition of the original dwelling. The application proposes
inadequate provision for off-street car parking, resulting in additional on-street parking in
an area where such parking is at a premium, which would be detrimental to the free flow
of traffic and give rise to conditions prejudicial to highway and pedestrian safety.
Furthermore the proposed development by reason of the extensive use of the rear garden
area for parking including extensive areas of hard-standing, and the proximity of the car
parking spaces to surrounding properties, would result in a significant increase in noise
and general disturbance to the proposed and adjoining residential properties. 

In addition the proposed flat which would be split over two floors would provide an indoor
living area of an unsatisfactory size for the future occupiers. The proposal would therefore
give rise to a substandard form of living accommodation to the detriment of the amenities
of future occupiers.

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed two storey side/rear extension, by reason of its siting in this open prominent

1

2. RECOMMENDATION 

13/10/2017Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 10

Page 57



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NON2

NON2

NON2

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

position, its size, scale, bulk and roof form in particular the crown roof and rear dormer
design would represent an incongruous addition, which would fail to harmonise with the
architectural composition of the original end terrace dwelling and would be detrimental to
the character, appearance and to the visual amenities of the street scene and the
surrounding area. Therefore the proposal would be contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13, BE15 and
BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Extensions.

The proposal provides an indoor living area of an unsatisfactory size for the occupiers of
the proposed flat on the first floor. The proposal therefore gives rise to a substandard form
of living accommodation to the detriment of the amenities of future occupiers contrary to
Policy 3.5 and Table 3.3 of the London Plan (2016), The Housing Standards Minor
Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016), Policies BE19 and H7 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), the Mayor of London's adopted
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016) and the Technical Housing
Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard (March 2015).

The application proposes inadequate provision for off-street car parking, resulting in
additional on-street parking in an area where such parking is at a premium, which would
be detrimental to the free flow of traffic and give rise to conditions prejudicial to highway
and pedestrian safety. Accordingly, the scheme is contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan Policies (November
2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

The proposed development by reason of the extensive use of the rear garden area for
parking including extensive areas of hard-standing, and the proximity of the car parking
spaces to surrounding properties, would result in a significant increase in noise and
general disturbance to the proposed and adjoining residential properties, and as such
would provide a poor residential environment and constitute an un-neighbourly form of
development, resulting in a material loss of residential amenity. The proposal is therefore
contrary to Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

2

3

4

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,

Page 58



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the Western side of Ashburton Road with the principal
elevation facing North East. The site comprises a two storey end-of-terrace house with a
single storey car port with a flat roof profile attached to its Northern side plus a further
parking space between the car port and the site's Northern boundary. To the front is a
mono-pitched roof running from the bay window to the end at ground floor with the first floor
set under a hipped roof set down from the main ridge by 0.97 metres. 

To the North of the property lies No. 2 Ashburton Road, a semi-detached two storey house

including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated
with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the 'Saved'
UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and
other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service. In
this instance no pre-application advice was sought.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

AM7

AM14

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

H7

OE1

LPP 3.3

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.8

LPP 5.3

LPP 7.4

LPP 3.5

HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Conversion of residential properties into a number of units

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
(2015) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2015) Housing Choice

(2015) Sustainable design and construction

(2015) Local character

(2015) Quality and design of housing developments

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006
Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

Page 59



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

arranged at an angle to Ashburton Road and Cornwall Road. This property has been
substantially extended at single storey level to the rear and side. To the South of the site is
No. 6 Ashburton Road, the attached house with a single storey rear extension. 

The street scene is residential in character comprising primarily groups of terraced
properties, many of which have previously been extended.  

The application site lies within the Developed Area as designated in the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

47214/PRC/2014/7 - Pre-Application for a private dwelling house. A number of objections
were raised.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

The proposed development would be assessed against the Development Plan Policies
contained within Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1, Saved Unitary Development Plan policies,
the London Plan 2016, the NPPF and supplementary planning guidance prepared by both
LB Hillingdon and the GLA.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for a part two storey, part single storey side/rear
extension, single storey front extension and conversion of roof space to habitable use to
include a rear dormer and conversion of the existing dwelling ( 1 x 4-bed) to 3 x 2-bed and
1 x 1-bed self-contained flats with associated parking and amenity space and installation of
vehicular crossover to front.

The proposal involves a two storey side extension 4.32 metre wide set in 1.2 metres from
the side boundary to the front reducing to 1 metre to the rear. At ground level this extends
the full length and wraps around to the rear projecting  a further 2.9 metres from the rear
elevation. The first floor elevation is set in 2.3 metre from the side boundary to the South,
closest to no.6 and has a stepped elevation. In addition there is also a rear dormer window
proposed. 

With these proposed alterations the existing dwelling is proposed to be converted to one, 1
bed 2 person flat and three 2 bed 3 person flats. 4 car parking spaces would be provided to
the rear of the site accessed via the private alleyway with the remaining garden area split
into 4 separate fenced off gardens each measuring 30 square metres.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

47214/PRC/2014/7 4 Ashburton Road Ruislip  

Private dwelling house

11-09-2014Decision: Refused

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 60



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

AM7

AM14

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

H7

OE1

LPP 3.3

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.8

LPP 5.3

LPP 7.4

LPP 3.5

HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Conversion of residential properties into a number of units

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

(2015) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2015) Housing Choice

(2015) Sustainable design and construction

(2015) Local character

(2015) Quality and design of housing developments

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

Initially 14 neighbouring properties along with Ruislip Residents Assocation were consulted on
19.10.2017 and a site notice was posted to the front of the site on 27.10.2017. Thereafter all the
remaining properties to the rear of the application site and those adjoining the access route along

Page 61



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Hatherleigh Road and Cornwall Road were consuted on 19.12.2017. 

At the time of preparing the report, 7 local objections were received along with an objection from
Ruislip Residents Assocation and a Ward Cllr who has also called for the application to be heard at
Committee. 

Ruisip Residents Association:
The bulk/mass of the proposed building appears to be out of character with its surroundings,
particularly when viewed approaching from the North and from the rear.The subdivision of the rear
garden into 4 separate spaces plus the provision of 4 parking spaces, bin stores etc will have a
detrimental effect on the neighbour's amenity. Also the proposal would result in a substantial loss of
soft garden area.
Our concern would be that if allowed this development would create a precedent for others of its
kind as we have already seen something similar with the units added on to the end of terrace blocks
where the original idea was that the space at the end of terraces was to create an open aspect at
the entrance to side roads.
We trust that our views can be taken into account and given the nature of the proposal that it be
decided at a full planning meeting.

Ward Cllr:
We have asked that it goes to Committee, we would not support this development in our ward due to
overdevelopment and garden grabbing.

The local objections can be summarised as follows:
- ensure the access road is never blocked by vehicles, machinary or materials at anytime. The
access road is in constant use by residents and nobody ever parks or blocks the route. 
- footpath beyond the existing garden area of the application site be kept clear for pedestrian access
from the gates through to Cornwall Road.
- over dominate end terrace and be out of proportion to the existing footprint. 
- be visually harmful to the existing residential street scene. 
- conversion to flats would potentially over intensify the use of the building, which would be harmful to
neighbouring amenities and the proposed parking to the rear of the site would result in additional
noise, disturbance and overuse of the existing garden. 
- would also be a security risk as the plans are open to the rear of the property. 
- The proposed bike rack would look out of character and would change the nature of the building
and would not be in keeping with the existing street scene. 
- The positioning of the rubbish bins to the rear of the property would be a health hazard,
encouraging vermin and daily odours which would be unpleasant. 
- Turnover of residents entering and exiting the property would be extremely high, causing added
security concerns and excess noise to our party wall.
- The side extension will block the natural sunlight coming through in my house. My wife is currently
suffering the lack of vitamin D and it is at most needed for her to obtain this sunlight in order for her
to keep her vitamin D level up as requested by the GP. 
- 4 parking bays at the rear raise concern with the privacy of my garden. 
- Security at the rear driveway due to 4 bays and opening of the secured gate entrance will be
promote other to venture into the driveway from the rear. Which in turn may open up an easier route
for thieves and opportunist for burglary and safety. Note that safety from the rear driveway has be
kept to minimal as the gates have been most locked. 
- very large planning application, which goes against the natural character of the houses that are
located in or around Ashburton Road. This would look out of sorts from the other buildings
connected or surrounding. 
- would change the living environment and the character of the area in Ruislip Manor. 
- Density of occupation and privacy. 
- 4 flats will inevitably need more than 4 parking spaces, parking for residents has become a major

Page 62



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

Highways - Objections:
This application is for the extension and conversion of an existing 4b dwelling in Ashburton Road
Ruislip to 3 x 2b + 1 x 1b flats. Ashburton Road is a local road that is subject to considerable parking
stress as not all properties have off-street car parking. The existing dwelling has off-street car
parking for two cars at the front of the property as well as a rear lane access. The site has a PTAL
value of 3 (moderate) The proposals involve adding to the existing building and making use of the
rear lane gated access to provide 4 car parking spaces. In order to comply with the Council's policy
on off-street car parking I would expect that 6 car parking spaces should be provided and some of
those would be directly accessible from Ashburton Road. The gated arrangement for the rear lane
access could be a deterrent for some drivers to use the rear parking bays on the site. The
waste/recycling bins should be within 10 m of the public highway and that is not the case. The cycle
storage is in an open position and is not covered nor secure so I would suggest that this is
redesigned. If the applicant wishes to redesign the car and cycle parking along with the bin storage I
will review the new scheme. If there is no revision I suggest you refuse the scheme on car parking
grounds.

Trees/Landscape - 
This site is occupied by an end of terrace house set within a spacious plot which is wider than
average in this street. Much of the frontage is hard surfaced and does little to contribute to the
character and appearance of this residential street. The back garden can be accessed from a
narrow rear service road entered from Hatherleigh Road. There are no tree, or landscape planning,
designations which affect the site. However, there are trees / shrubs along the side (North) and rear
(West) boundaries that can be seen from adjacent houses. 
Comment: No trees are indicated on plan but, according to the response to the D&AS (Q15), no
trees will be removed to facilitate the development. In fact the tree screen will have to be removed to
accommodate the proposed car park. The car park (for four cars) is very tight and will be awkward
to manoeuvre in. The bike storage is indicated on the front boundary where bikes will be insecure
and vulnerable to theft / vandalism. Bikes should be stored to the rear or within the private garden
spaces. No bin storage is indicated. However, the same guidance applies. The bins should be
discretely stored and screened from sight - but available for weekly collection. The front garden
should be soft landscaped to provide landscape enhancement for the benefit of the occupants and
the wider street scape. The private gardens are tiny and will be difficult to make useful and attractive

problem/ concern in this area. 
- The shared Road providing access to the parking has been successfully gated for a number of
years , unless the Access Path is gated to a similar standard this will impact considerably upon the
security of all the residents with properties on the shared access road.
- scheme appears to be a 'block of flats' bolted on the end of a terrace. The proposed gardens look
tiny and currently have no garden storage provided. 
- important that the side pedestrian gate should be both robust and secure because the alley gate
scheme has been very successful in improving the security here and this development could
potentially allow an uncontrolled access path to the service road if not properly secured. 
- The maintenance of the access gates and service road are run on a voluntary overseeing and
resident co-operation basis only. The service road land is owned mainly by houses in Cornwall Road
(like my own) with rights of way to others. The gate locks can be temperamental at times and use of
the gates is currently fairly infrequent.
- additional noise from all the flats and dust during the construction of the flats. 
- complete over development of the plot and are not in keeping with the character of the existing
dwellings in the road. -
- The car parking spaces at the rear of the development are unlikely to be used due to there location
off a gated, overgrown alleyway in very poor condition. The cars are therefore likely to be parked in
the street outside adjacent properties. Car parking in the street is already creating problems and this
will add to an already difficult situation.

Page 63



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

The site is within the developed area as defined in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).  It is currently in residential use and there is no
objection in principle to the intensification of the residential use of the site, subject to all
other material planning considerations being acceptable, in accordance with Policy H7 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012). Policy H7 pertains to house conversions and
serves to ensure that conversions achieve satisfactory environmental and amenity
standards.

- in this case a well-designed shared communal space might be more effective than the proposed
sub-division? In my view the layout is too cramped and not all of the issues can be resolved through
conditions. 
Recommendation: Notwithstanding the above comments, if the scheme is approved conditions
should include: RES9 (parts 1, 2, 4 and 5).

Access - no objections:
I have considered the detail of this planning application and have no comments to make.

Floods - no objections:
The site lies in a Critical Drainage Area (CDA) identified in the Surface Water Management Plan
(SWMP) for Hillingdon. A CDA is the catchment area from which surface water drains and
contributes to drainage problems. The site is also identified at risk of surface water flooding on the
Environment Agency Flood Maps. It is therefore important all developments in this area contribute to
manage the risk from surface water, and reduce the run off from their site. 

The following condition is therefore requested: 

Prior to commencement, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly
demonstrate how it incorporates sustainable urban drainage in accordance with the hierarchy set
out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan and will: 
i. provide information on all Suds features including the method employed to delay and control the
surface water discharged from the site and: 
ii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of arrangements
to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including appropriate details of
Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification. The scheme shall also demonstrate the
use of methods to minimise the use of potable water through water collection, reuse and recycling
and will: 
iii. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater; 
iv. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the development.
Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance with these
details for as long as the development remains in existence. 

REASON To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), Policy DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality in
emerging Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Development Management Policies. Policy 5.12 Flood Risk
Management of the London Plan (July 2011), and National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012),
and the Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014). To be handled as close to its source as possible
in compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable Drainage of the London Plan (July 2011), and conserve
water supplies in accordance with Policy 5.15 Water use and supplies of the London Plan (July
2011).

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 64



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Density ranges set out in the London Plan are not used in the assessment of schemes of
less than 10 units.

However the Council seeks to ensure that houses suitable for conversion should be over
120 m2 in internal floor area, which this is at approximately 147 m2. 

Minimum gross internal floor and storage is a further measure of the suitability of the size
of a proposed dwelling. DCLG guidance identifies that a 1 storey, 1 bed 2 person dwelling
should have a total of 51.5 m2 (50+1.5) and a 2 bed 3 person 63 m2 (61+2) for 1 storey
and for 2 storey 72 m2 (70+2). 

The three 2 bed flats are shown to have a single and double bedroom accounting for the 3
person dwellings. However Flat 2 which is split over the first and second floor has the
single bedroom located on the second floor which has a total floor area of 21.88 m2.
Therefore given the size this would be classed as a double and would result in this being a
considered as 2 bed 4 person dwelling which would require a minimum total floor area of
81 m2 (79+2). However the total floor area is only 74.45 m2. This dwelling would provide an
indoor living area of an unsatisfactory size for the occupiers of the proposed Flat 2 and
therefore gives rise to a substandard form of living accommodation to the detriment of the
amenities of future occupiers.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
states that all new developments should achieve a high quality of design in all new
buildings and the public realm contributes to community cohesion and a sense of place. 

Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two (Saved UDP Policies) requires
alterations and extensions to existing buildings to harmonise with the scale, form and
architectural composition of the original building. Policy BE5 requires development to
harmonise with the materials, design, architectural style of the area and retain a form of
symmetry. Policy BE13 requires the layout and appearance of new developments to
harmonise with the existing street scene or other features of the area and Policy BE19
ensures any new development complements or improves the amenity and character of the
area.

The NPPF (2012) notes the importance of achieving design which is appropriate to its
context stating that 'Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way it functions.'

The Council's Adopted SPD the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential
Extensions (December 2008) or HDAS, contains design guidance for all types of
extensions which should appear subordinate in scale to the original building.

Page 65



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

The proposal involves a two storey side extension 4.32 metre wide set in 1.2 metres from
the side boundary to the front reducing to 1 metre to the rear. At ground level this extends
the full length and wraps around to the rear projecting  a further 2.9 metres from the rear
elevation. The first floor elevation is set in 2.3 metre from the side boundary to south,
closest to no.6 and has a stepped elevation. In addition there is also a rear dormer window
proposed. This results in a large crown roof in addition to the dormer within the roof slope.
It is considered that these proposals are not sympathetic to the original dwelling and would
not be in keeping with the character and appearance of the both the existing dwelling or the
surrounding area. This is exacerbated by the prominent position of the end terrace property
and the wider views of the site from the access road to the rear. 

In conclusion it is considered that the proposals are significant and would significantly alter
the character and appearance of the original property. The proposal is unacceptable in
regards to its bulk, scale, design and will therefore have a detrimental impact on the
character and appearance of the area,contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seeks to
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents in three principal ways. The effect of the
siting, bulk and proximity of a new building on the general outlook and residential amenity of
these adjoining occupiers are considered under Policy BE20, whilst potential impacts on
daylight/sunlight (Policy BE21) and privacy (Policy BE24) are also assessed.

The neighbouring property and adjoining terrace to the immediate South, no.6 Ashburton
Road benefits from a single storey rear extension. In addition the proposed first floor
element has been staggered and stepped in so that there are no impingement's on any 45
degree lines. Furthermore there are no windows on either side elevation proposed. 

It is considered that there would be no adverse issues raised in regard to overlooking or
privacy. Therefore, it is considered that the proposed development would not constitute an
un-neighbourly form of development in accordance with Policies BE19, BE20, BE21 and
BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

However notwithstanding the above, the proposed development by reason of the extensive
use of the rear garden area for parking including extensive areas of hard-standing, and the
proximity of the car parking spaces to surrounding properties, would result in a significant
increase in noise and general disturbance to the proposed and adjoining residential
properties, and as such would provide a poor residential environment and constitute an un-
neighbourly form of development.

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The
Mayor of London adopted the new national technical standards through The Housing
Standards (Minor Alterations to the London Plan) in March 2016 and this sets out the
minimum internal floor spaces required for developments in order to ensure that there is an
adequate level of amenity for existing and future occupants.

Minimum gross internal floor and storage is a further measure of the suitability of the size
of a proposed dwelling. DCLG guidance identifies that a 1 storey, 1 bed 2 person dwelling

Page 66



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

should have a total of 51.5 m2 (50+1.5) and a 2 bed 3 person 63 m2 (61+2) for 1 storey
and for 2 storey 72 m2 (70+2). 

The three 2 bed flats are shown to have a single and double bedroom accounting for the 3
person dwellings. However Flat 2 which is split over the first and second floor has the
single bedroom located on the second floor which has a total floor area of 21.88 m2.
Therefore given the size this would be classed as a double and would result in this being a
considered as 2 bed 4 person dwelling which would require a minimum total floor area of
81 m2 (79+2). However the total floor area is only 74.45 m2. This dwelling would provide an
indoor living area of an unsatisfactory size for the occupiers of the proposed Flat 2 and
therefore gives rise to a substandard form of living accommodation to the detriment of the
amenities of future occupiers.

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms, would have an adequate outlook and
source of natural light, and therefore comply with Policies BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts. 

Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) recognises that new residential
buildings should 'provide external amenity space which is sufficient to protect the amenity
of the occupants of the proposed and surrounding buildings'. The adopted Supplementary
Planning Document (SPD) HDAS: Residential Layouts at Paragraph 4.15 recommends
that one and two bedroom dwellings should provide a minimum of 40 m2 of usable amenity
space. 

The proposal provides 30 m2 of usable private amenity space for each plot which is in
excess of the Council's adopted standard of 25 m2. The proposal therefore complies with
policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan
Policies (November 2012) considers whether the traffic generated by the proposed
development is acceptable in terms of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows
and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

Policy AM14 states that new development will only be permitted where it is in accordance
with the Council's adopted Car Parking Standards. These require a provision of 6 car
parking spaces and not 4 as proposed. In addition these are proposed to the rear of the site
which the only access from a private alleyway and not a public road. There are no parking
provisions proposed to the front of the site. 

In addition the council's highway officer has also objected, stating:
This application is for the extension and conversion of an existing 4b dwelling in Ashburton
Road Ruislip to 3 x 2b + 1 x 1b flats. Ashburton Road is a local road that is subject to
considerable parking stress as not all properties have off-street car parking. The existing
dwelling has off-street car parking for two cars at the front of the property as well as a rear
lane access. The site has a PTAL value of 3 (moderate) The proposals involve adding to
the existing building and making use of the rear lane gated access to provide 4 car parking
spaces. In order to comply with the Council's policy on off-street car parking I would expect
that 6 car parking spaces should be provided and some of those would be directly
accessible from Ashburton Road. The gated arrangement for the rear lane access could
be a deterrent for some drivers to use the rear parking bays on the site. The

Page 67



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

waste/recycling bins should be within 10m of the public highway and that is not the case.
The cycle storage is in an open position and is not covered nor secure. 

If the application was recommended for approval then these alterations would have been
sought.

Urban design issues have been covered elsewhere in the report and with regard to access
and security, had the application not been recommended for refusal, conditions could have
been included to ensure compliance with these requirements.

Secured by Design is now covered by Part Q of the Building Regulations which the
development would be required to accord with, if the application had been recommended
for approval.

If the scheme is found acceptable a condition would be recommended to secure the
development was built to M4(2) in accordance with Policy 3.8 c of the London Plan.

Not applicable to this application.

An appropriate scheme of landscaping and landscape protection could have been secured
by condition if the application was recommended for approval.

Policy 5.17 of the London Plan requires that all new development provide adequate facilities
for the storage of waste and recycling.

Not applicable to this application. 

Given the potential scale and nature of the proposed development, it is not considered likely
to raise significant sustainability concerns.

The site is not within a flood zone.

The site lies in a Critical Drainage Area (CDA) identified in the Surface Water Management
Plan (SWMP) for Hillingdon. A CDA is the catchment area from which surface water drains
and contributes to drainage problems. The site is also identified at risk of surface water
flooding on the Environment Agency Flood Maps. It is therefore important all developments
in this area contribute to manage the risk from surface water, and reduce the run off from
their site. 

An appropriate condition would therefore have been included if the application was
recommended for approval.

No issues raised.

The comments raised through the consultation process and the potential concerns relating
to the impact of the development on adjoining occupiers have been considered in the main
body of the report.

Page 68



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.21

7.22

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

The Council's Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule was adopted on 1st
August 2014. The additional habitable floor space created will be chargeable at £95 per
square metre.  

The scheme would also be liable for payments under the Community Infrastructure Levy.
On the 1st April 2012 the Mayoral Community Structure Levy came into force. The London
Borough of Hillingdon falls within Charging Zone 2, therefore, a flat rate fee of £35 per
square metre would be required for each net additional square metre added to the site as
part of the development.

Community Infrastructure Levy: 
The Council adopted a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st 2014 and the
Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of additional
floorspace. This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £35 per sq metre. 

Therefore the Hillingdon & Mayoral CIL Charges for the proposed development of 245 sq
metres of additional floorspace is currently calculated as follows: 

Hillingdon CIL = £28,283.54
Mayoral CIL = £11,074.44
Total = £ 39,357.98

There are no enforcement issues raised by this application.

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.
 
Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned. 
 
Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.
 
Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.
 
Planning Obligations

Page 69



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).
 
Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

None.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks planning permission for a part two storey, part single storey side/rear
extension, single storey front extension and conversion of roof space to habitable use to
include a rear dormer and conversion of the existing dwelling ( 1 x 4-bed) to 2 x 2-bed and
2 x 1-bed self-contained flats with associated parking and amenity space and installation of
vehicular crossover to front.

Having examined the proposal it is considered that the proposal is unacceptable for a
number of reasons. The proposed side and rear extension, by reason of its siting in this
open prominent position and in particular the crown roof design, would fail to harmonise
with the architectural composition of the original dwelling. The application proposes
inadequate provision for off-street car parking, resulting in additional on-street parking in an
area where such parking is at a premium, which would be detrimental to the free flow of
traffic and give rise to conditions prejudicial to highway and pedestrian safety. Furthermore
the proposed development by reason of the extensive use of the rear garden area for
parking including extensive areas of hard-standing, and the proximity of the car parking
spaces to surrounding properties, would result in a significant increase in noise and
general disturbance to the proposed and adjoining residential properties. 

In addition the proposed flat which would be split over two floors would provide an indoor

Page 70



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

living area of an unsatisfactory size for the future occupiers. The proposal would therefore
give rise to a substandard form of living accommodation to the detriment of the amenities
of future occupiers.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (2016)
The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)
Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon
Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard (March 2015)
National Planning Policy Framework

Hardeep Ryatt 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 71



9
9
a

9
9

Shelter

9
7

9
6

CHELS

19a

19

Shelter

Old L
1 to 1

LB

1a

32b

1b

32a

2
1

114

S
U

N
N

Y
D

E
N

E
 A

V
E

N
U

E

R
O

S
E

B
U

R
Y

 V
A

L
E

111

gswear

2
2

147 138

140

31

171

Ashburton

44.2m

1

146

2

1
4

163

149

1
2

2

2
2

116

126

42.4m

LB

21b
21a

1

1
3
8

137

1 to 12

2

18

1

2
7

A
S

H
B

U
R

T
O

N
 R

2

1
0
8

1
2
2

11

43.3m

1
5

1

2

Warburton Court

165

1
9

1
5
0

11
9

1
0
1

1
0

1
2

4
1

HATHERLEIG
H ROAD

39

CORNWALL ROAD

8

2
4

21

3
4

Court

1
3

32

´

January 2017

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

4 Ashburton Road

North Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

15579/APP/2017/3615

Page 72



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

4 VICTORIA ROAD RUISLIP  

Change of use from retail (Use Class A1) to a nail bar (Sui Generis)

20/09/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 34090/APP/2017/3428

Drawing Nos: Existing Floor Plan
Location Plan
Proposed Floor

Date Plans Received: 20/09/0017Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the change of use from a vacant unit within
Use Class A1 to Sui-Generis Use for a nail bar. 

Policy S12 states that permission will be granted for the change of use from Class A1 in
Secondary Shopping Areas provided that the remaining retail facilities are adequate for the
Shopping Area to function and the proposed development would not result in a separation
of A1 uses or a concentration of non-retail uses. 

However it should be noted that the existing use or the unit when last occupied was used
as a printing shop, as the fascia signs illustrate. It is therefore considered that the existing
use was in fact A2 professional services and not necessarily A1. Furthermore the
proposal would not involve any external alterations and thus would not result in a material
impact on the appearance of the street scene. Furthermore it would not result in a loss of
residential amenity and the demand for parking and traffic generation from the proposed
use would not be significantly different from the previous use.

Accordingly, the development is considered to comply with national, regional and local
policies and is recommended for approval.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

COM3

COM4

Time Limit

Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plan reference 'Proposed Ground
Floor Plan' and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development
remains in existence.
 

1

2

2. RECOMMENDATION 

16/10/2017Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 11

Page 73



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC Non Standard Condition

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

The premises shall not be open for customers outside the following hours: -
[0800 to 2100], Mondays - Fridays
[0800 to 2100] Saturdays
[1000 to 1800] Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays.

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy OE3 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

3

I59

I52

I53

Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

3

INFORMATIVES

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM7

BE13

BE15

LPP 2.15

LPP 4.8

NPPF2

OE1

S1

S6

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

(2016) Town Centres

(2016) Supporting a Successful and Diverse Retail Sector and
related facilities and services
NPPF - Ensuring the vitality of town centres

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
New retail development within the shopping hierarchy

Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping

Page 74



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I2

I47

I5

I15

Encroachment

Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

Party Walls

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

4

5

6

7

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application may have to
be submitted. The validity of this planning permission may be challengeable by third
parties if the development results in any form of encroachment onto land outside the
applicant's control for which the appropriate Notice under Article 13 of the Town and
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 has not
been served.

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. 

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
 carry out work to an existing party wall;
 build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
 in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner and
are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building Control
Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the
adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as removing
the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further
information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory
booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Residents Services
Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

S7
areas
Change of use of shops in Parades

Page 75



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

8

9

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site relates to a mid-terrace ground floor unit at the corner of Victoria Road
at the junctiion with Pembroke Road. The unit was previously in use as a printing shop and
has now been vacant for several months. The vacant unit is within a three storey building
forming one half of the bull nose at the South Western corner fronting the cross-junction of
Victoria Road, Pembroke Road, Windmill Hill and Parkway. The three storey building has
commercial and retail units at ground floor level fronting along Victoria Road and Pembroke
Road with mainly residential units above on the second and third storey. The unit to the
immediate North West, no.2 Victoria Road is currenty a hair salon and to the other side is a
commercial retail unit. 

There is a wide footway to the front of the property, together with a service/access road to
the rear off Pembroke Road. The site is located on Victoria Road, a classified highway
within Ruislip Manor Town Centre and the Secondary Shopping Area as identified in the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the change of use from a vacant unit within
Use Class A1 to Sui-Generis Use for a nail bar. 

The proposal would not involve any external alterations only alterations to the internal
layout.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

The applicant is advised to seek advertisement consent for any outdoor advertising and
planning permission if any changes to the shopfront are proposed.

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. The
Council's supports pre-application discussions.

34090/83/9137 Ruislip Sign & Stationers, 4 Victoria Road Ruislip 

Installation of a projecting sign.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Page 76



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

None directly relevant to this application. 

34090/83/9137 - Installation of a projecting sign. Approved

4. Planning Policies and Standards

The Local Planning Authority seeks to retain the retail function of all shopping areas to meet
the needs of the area which they serve. Shops grouped conveniently together assist the
process of search for and comparison of goods and hence attract shoppers. As such the
Local Planning Authority exercises strict control over the loss of shops to other uses.

Saved Policy S6 states that change of use will be granted where; a frontage of design
appropriate to the surrounding area is maintained or provided; the use would be compatible
with neighbouring uses and will not cause unacceptable loss of amenity to nearby
residential properties; and would not have a harmful effect on road safety or worsen traffic
congestion.

The proposal would not involve any external alterations to the property. It is considered that
the proposal would not lead to an increased demand for parking within the vicinity and is
considered not to have an adverse effect on highway safety. It is also considered that the
proposed use would compliment the immediately adjoining unit which is being used as a
hair salon. Therefore the proposal would comply with the criteria listed in policy S6 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM7

BE13

BE15

LPP 2.15

LPP 4.8

NPPF2

OE1

S1

S6

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

(2016) Town Centres

(2016) Supporting a Successful and Diverse Retail Sector and related facilities
and services

NPPF - Ensuring the vitality of town centres

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

New retail development within the shopping hierarchy

Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas

Part 2 Policies:

06-01-1984Decision: Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 77



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

S7 Change of use of shops in Parades

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The relevant policies and standards that are to be considered in the determination of this
application have been provided in the relevant section above. The principle of the
development is essentially whether the loss of A1 use within a protected shopping parade
could be supported, and whether the change of use can be justified in this instance.

However it should be noted that the existing use of the unit when last occupied was used
as a printing shop, as the fascia signs illustrate. It is therefore considered that the existing
use was in fact A2 professional services and not necessarily A1. 

In addition the proposal would not involve any external alterations to the property. It is
considered that the proposal would not lead to an increase demand for parking within the
vicinity and is considered not to have an adverse effect on highway safety and as a
sufficient number of shops would be retained to provide a range and choice of shops
appropriate to the size of the parade.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Policies BE13 and BE19 resist any development which
would fail to harmonise with the existing street scene or complement or improve the
character of the area.

Internal Consultees

EPU - No comments. 

Highways - No comments.

External Consultees

Neighbouring properties along with Ruislip Residents Association were consulted on 18.10.2017 and
a site notice was displayed to the front of the site on 27.10.2017. 

No comments or ojections have been received.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 78



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

The proposal is a change of use only and is therefore considered acceptable in this regard.

The applicant should note that any proposals for a replacement shopfront or display of
advertisements would have to be subject to further separate planning applications.

The proposed development is a change of use only and there are no external alterations
proposed. As a result this would not cause an adverse impact on the neighbours' amenity.
The nearest residential units are set above the application site and as such, there would be
no loss of outlook, no loss of privacy or light, nor any overshadowing or visual intrusion. 

The hours of operation are likely to be consistent with the existing uses in the vicinity and
as such, the proposal is considered to have no material impact on the amenity of the
neighbouring occupiers, in compliance with Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012).

Not applicable.

Policy AM2 and AM7 states that all proposals for development will be assessed against
their contribution to traffic generation and their impact on congestion and the present and
potential availability of public transport and its capacity to meet increased demand. 

Given the site's location in a town centre, it is considered the change of use would not
affect the current parking provision. The use would also not generate additional parking
demand which would be significant or to the deteriment to the area or safety.

These issues have been dealt with elsewhere in the report. 

This is a change of use only. There are no changes to the building itself.

The proposal makes no changes to access arrangements.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

No comments or objections received.

None.

Page 79



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.22 Other Issues
Not applicable.

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.
 
Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned. 
 
Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.
 
Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.
 
Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).
 
Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the

Page 80



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

None.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks planning permission for the change of use from a vacant unit within
Use Class A1 to Sui-Generis Use for a nail bar. 

Policy S12 states that permission will be granted for the change of use from Class A1 in
Secondary Shopping Areas provided that the remaining retail facilities are adequate for the
Shopping Area to function and the proposed development would not result in a separation
of A1 uses or a concentration of non-retail uses. 

However it should be noted that the existing use or the unit when last occupied was used
as a printing shop, as the fascia signs illustrate. It is therefore considered that the existing
use was in fact A2 professional services and not necessarily A1. Furthermore the proposal
would not involve any external alterations and thus would not result in a material impact on
the appearance of the street scene. Furthermore it would not result in a loss of residential
amenity and the demand for parking and traffic generation from the proposed use would
not be significantly different from the previous use.

Accordingly, the development is considered to comply with national, regional and local
policies and is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (2016)
Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.
National Planning Policy Framework.

Hardeep Ryatt 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 81



1

Court

Hall

Park Way

The Pembroke Centre

105
105b

1 to 39

Windmill Court

Garage

Car P
ark

134

122

50.3m

Ruislip

Baptis
t

W
E

S
T

 W
A

Y

48.5m

Chapel
West Way

93

SL

89

126

Hall

Church

7

ESS

TCB

(LU)
Ruislip Manor S

tation

Shelter

Shelter

S
h
e
lte

r

Shelter

Play Area

41

3743

5
5

45

5
0

Crown
Apartments

1 to 24

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

4
2

1
9
b

83

3
5

4
5

W
IN

D
M

IL
L
 H

IL
L

1
9

116

66

1

4
8

71

C
lu

b

1
7

69

58 to
 64

4
7

4
9

5
9

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 R
O

A
D

Sorting Office

E
A

S
T

 W
A

Y

Car 

Bank

3

47.9m

4
0

4
6

3
0

1
2

E
lm

 P
a
rk

112110108

2

6
1

5

81

44.8m

73

76

5
0

2
0

2
1

Shelter

´

January 2017

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

4 Victoria Road

North Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

34090/APP/2017/3428

Page 82



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

86 VICTORIA ROAD RUISLIP  

Change of use from retail (Use Class A1 to a mixed use comprising retail,
restaurant and hot food takeaway Use Classes A1/A3/A5), involving
installation of extractor fan to rear and internal alterations

31/08/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 28709/APP/2017/3180

Drawing Nos: Design and Access Statement
AR-P02
AR-P03
AR-P06
AR-P05
AR-P04
AR-P01

Date Plans Received: 31/08/0017Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The application relates to the ground floor unit of a three storey mid-terrace property
located on the South West side of Victoria Road.  The unit is part of a shopping parade.

The application seeks permission for the change of use of an existing A1 (Shops) unit to a
mixed Use Classes A1/A3/A5 (involving installation of extractor fan to rear and internal
alterations.) The A1 use at present is a sandwich bar, which the agent advises wished to
diversify is food and drink offer to enable commercial viability. The internal alterations
include the provision of a new disabled toilet. 

The proposed change of use would retain Class A1 usage in the Primary Shopping Area
and, on balance, with a restricted element of Class A3/A5 use, would not be detrimental to
the continued operation of the town centre as a retail destination.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

HO1

HO2

Time Limit

Accordance with approved

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers AR-P03;04;06 and
the details of the air extraction system given in 17_0806_FUL-
ANTI_VIBRATION_MOUNT_SPECIFICATION-318 and 17_0806_FUL-
EXTRACTOR_SPECIFICATION_SHEET-318050

1

2

2. RECOMMENDATION 

18/09/2017Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 12

Page 83



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

COM23

COM20

COM17

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

Hours of Use (Restaurant etc.)

Air extraction system noise and odour

Control of site noise rating level

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

The premises shall be used solely as as mixed A1/A3/A5 use and at no time shall become
A3 or A5 use only, without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority.  

REASON
To protect the retailing function of the Primary Shopping Area, in the interests of the policy
set out in the National Planning Policy Framework and  policies SE6 and SE11 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012)

No food deliveries shall be dispatched from the site.

REASON 
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
policy OE1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The premises shall not be open for customers outside the following hours: -
[0800 to 2300], Mondays - Fridays
[0800 to 2300] Saturdays
[1000 to 2200] Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays.

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy OE3 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

No air extraction system shall be used on the premises until a scheme for the control of
noise and odour emanating from the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall include such combination of measures as
may be approved by the LPA.  Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented and
maintained in full compliance with the approved measures.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
policy OE1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The rating level of the noise emitted from the site shall be at least 5dB below the existing
background noise level.  The noise levels shall be determined at the nearest residential
windows immediately above no. 86 Victoria Road. The measurements and assessment
shall be made in accordance to the latest British Standard 4142, 'Method for rating
industrial noise affecting mixed residential and industrial areas'.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

3

4

5

6

7

Page 84



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I59

I52

I53

Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

3

4

INFORMATIVES

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies. On the
8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils Local
Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the
old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control
decisions.

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

The applicant is advised that permission will be needed for any replacement shopfront or
external advertisements.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

AM14

BE13

LDF-AH

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE23

BE24

H7

HDAS-LAY

LPP 3.3

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.5

OE1

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Conversion of residential properties into a number of units

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006
(2011) Increasing housing supply

(2011) Optimising housing potential

(2011) Quality and design of housing developments

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

Page 85



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application relates to a three storey mid-terrace property located on the South West
side of Victoria Road. The ground floor of the unit has a glazed frontage and is currently in
use as a breakfast bar with inside seating   The unit forms part of a retail parade with
glazed shop fronts at ground floor level and residential accommodation provided above.
The site is flanked by a nail bar on one side and a Thai massage parlour on the other.  The
remainder of the parade comprises a mix of retail, restaurants and take-away premises

None.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Policy S6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - UDP Saved Policies (November 2012)
states:

To safeguard the amenities of shopping areas, the Local Planning Authority will grant
permission for changes of use of class A1 shops if:
i) The proposal will not be detrimental to the visual amenity where the premises forms part
of a locally listed building or are located within a conservation area.
ii) A frontage of a design appropriate to the surrounding is maintained or provided.
iii) The proposed use is compatible with neighbouring uses and will not cause
unacceptable loss of amenity to nearby residential properties by reason of disturbance,
noise, smell, fumes, parking or traffic related problems.
iv) Has no harmful effect on road safety and does not worsen traffic congestion or disrupt
bus operations.

Policy S11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - UDP Saved Policies (November 2012)
states:

In primary shopping areas, the local planning authority will grant permission where it is
satisfied that: 

a) The remaining retail activities are adequate to accord with the character and function of
the shopping centre and to provide for the needs of modern retailing including customer
interests.
b) The proposed use will not result in a separation of class A1 uses or a concentration of
non-retail uses which might harm the viability or vitality of the centre.

Paragraph 8.26 also adds the following in regards to what constitutes a concentration of
non-retail uses, which might harm the viability or vitality of the town centre:

"The Local Planning Authority will consider the range and number of retail outlets in the
centre and their suitability for modern retailing in assessing the adequacy of the remaining

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks permission for the change of use of an existing A1 (Shops) unit to a
mixed Use Class A1(retail) A5 (Hot Food Takeaway) including the installation of an
extractor fan.  No other external changes are proposed.  Any proposal to alter the shopfront
or new advertisements would be subject of applications in their own right.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 86



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

retail facilities. Primary areas appear to be vulnerable if Class A1 shops form less than
70% of the total frontage length and the Local Planning Authority will therefore seek to
maintain at least 70% of the primary area frontage in Class A1 use and generally to avoid
concentrations of service uses in both primary and secondary areas. The Local Planning
Authority intends to prevent avoidable interruptions to the frontage by dispersing service
uses within shopping areas and limiting the length of continuous frontage in non-retail use.
It will therefore take particular care in the siting of non-retail uses in relation to existing and
unavoidable frontage interruptions. As a guideline, it will normally seek to prevent a
separation or an increase in the separation of Class A1 units of more than about 12 m, that
is broadly the width of two typical shop fronts. "

The emerging Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (October 2015)
proposes to take a variation of this policy forward. Policy DMTC 2: Primary and Secondary
Shopping Areas outlines the following:

"A) In primary shopping areas, the Council will support the ground floor use of premises for
retail, financial and professional activities and restaurants, cafes, pubs and bars provided
that:

i) a minimum of 70% of the frontage is retained in retail Use Class A1 use; 

The 2016 Ruislip Manor Town Centre Shopping Survey showed that the level was already
below this percentage (56%). The property is currently in use as a breakfast bar/ sandwich
bar with customer seating.  Functionally the proposal will have little impact on the way the
property operates but will allow the owners to serve hot food.   

The property is not a locally listed building or  located within a conservation area.

The frontage design is not to be altered. Any external alterations, with the exception of the
extraction system, would require separate consents and can therefore be controlled.

The proposed use is compatible with neighbouring uses and will not cause unacceptable
loss of amenity to nearby residential properties by reason of disturbance, noise, smell,
fumes, parking or traffic related problems. The extractor would be position a significant
distance from residential properties and would be fitted with 2 silencers. 

The proposal will have no harmful effect on road safety and does not worsen traffic
congestion or disrupt bus operations.

In order to protect the primary use for Class A1 purposes, it would appear reasonable in
this case to allow a mixed use, retaining Class A1 use but allowing for an element of Class
A3/A5 use. A condition will be imposed that no delivery service will be permissible from the
site. Therefore, the change of use would not be considered to have a detrimental impact on
the vitality and viability of the town centre as a shopping destination.

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

Page 87



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

AM14

BE13

LDF-AH

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE23

BE24

H7

HDAS-LAY

LPP 3.3

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.5

OE1

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Conversion of residential properties into a number of units

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

(2011) Increasing housing supply

(2011) Optimising housing potential

(2011) Quality and design of housing developments

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

7.01 The principle of the development

The NPPF presumes in favour of sustainable development with a goal to creating a
prosperous economy and ensuring the vitality of town centres.  Paragraph 23 states,
amongst other things, that Councils should define primary shopping areas which make
clear which uses should be permitted and that sites should be allocated to accommodate
the scale and type of retail, leisure, commercial office, tourism, cultural, community and
residential development needed in town centres.  The NPPF therefore, on the one hand,
seeks to prioritise areas of retail, but on the other hand, promotes all uses within town
centres.   The policy principle is a balanced consideration.  The saved Local Plan policies
are restrictive but can only be considered applicable to the extent that they comply with the
NPPF, which presumes in favour of sustainable development.  Policies S6 and S11 do not
state a presumption against development but, rather, set out criteria for assessment, and if

Internal Consultees

Environmental Protection Unit - no comments.

External Consultees

Neighbours were notified on 20/09/2017 and a site notice was displayed on 28/09/2017.   

By the end of the consultation period no objections or comments were received.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 88



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

complied with, then planning permission will be granted. The proposal would not result in
the cessation of Class A1 use and appropriate conditions can ensure that Class A1 use
will not cease without further permission being needed.  It is considered, in this instance,
that the proposed change of use and provision of a mixed use would be acceptable in
principle.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

The only external change is a means of extraction to be fitted on an existing rear extension.
 This has a low impact on the appearance of the area and is characteristic of the type of
feature found in this service area to the rear of the shopping parade.

The only external change is the erection of a flue on the rear extension of the property.
This is of modest visual appearance and it is not considered that it would detract from the
visual amenities that occupiers of flats above the parade might reasonably expect to enjoy.
The Environmental Protection Officer did not comment.   However, the flue will be subject
to control under Environmental Health legislation in terms of noise and other emissions.

Not applicable.

The application is for the change of use and extension of an existing development and is
considered not to have any impact in terms of traffic or pedestrian safety in the area.

There are no existing parking spaces provided within the curtilage of the site and the
proposal does not include any details of additional parking at the site.  However, given its
town centre location, it is not considered that there will be any adverse impacts.

Reference is made elsewhere to the flue which is the only external change.

No changes are proposed.

Not applicable.

No issues arise.

No issues arise.

No issues arise.

No issues arise.

Page 89



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

No issues arise.

No comments were received.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

None

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.
 
Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned. 
 
Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.
 
Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.
 
Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).
 
Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

Page 90



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

None.

10. CONCLUSION

The NPPF presumes in favour of sustainable development with a goal to creating a
prosperous economy  and ensuring the vitality of town centres. The NPPF therefore, on the
one hand, seeks to prioritise areas of retail, but on the other hand, promotes all uses within
town centres.   The policy principle is a balanced consideration.  The saved Local Plan
policies are restrictive but can only be considered applicable to the extent that they comply
with the NPPF, which presumes in favour of sustainable development.  Policies S6 and
S11 do not state a presumption against development but, rather, set out criteria by which
planning permission will be judged/granted. 

The proposed means of extraction is small and is located on a single storey rear extension
in an area where this type of structure is typically found.  It has a low impact in street scene
terms.

The proposal would not result in the cessation of Class A1 use and appropriate conditions
can ensure that Class A1 use will not cease without further permission being needed.   It is
considered, in this instance, that the proposed change of use and provision of a mixed use
would be acceptable in principle.  As such, it is recommended that conditional planning
permission be granted.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon
National Planning Policy Framework
Ruislip Manor Town Centre Shopping  Survey 2014

Cris Lancaster 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 91



Victoria Court

1 to 8

Library

l Sub Sta

4
5

4
7

4
9

1

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 R
O

A
D

5
1

TCB

2

4
0

3

44.8m

5
0

SHENLEY AVENUE

9
9
a

9
9

Shelter

D
U

LV
E

R
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D

1
4

6
4

4
2

1

7

2
8

2

3

7
8

Bank

44.8m

5

1
7

5
2

8

S
y
n

a
g

o
g

u
e

6
1

7
3

8
5

9
7

21

9

8
0

9
0

7
6

2
9

7
4

9

1

22

9
6

CHELSTON APPROA

Shelter

Old Library Cour
1 to 11

114

S
U

N
N

Y
D

E
N

E
 A

V
E

N
U

E

S
E

B
U

R
Y

 V
A

L
E

111

2
2

147 138

140

171

7

1

44.2m

146

1
4

163

149

1
2

2

LB

1
3
8

1
3
3

2

1 to 12

1
0
8

1
2
2

43.3m

Warburton Court

165

1
9

11
9

1
0
1

CORNWALL ROAD

1
3

´

January

2018

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

86 Victoria Road

North Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

28709/APP/2017/3180

Page 92



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

DAVID LLOYD NORTHWOOD 18 DUCKS HILL ROAD NORTHWOOD 

Installation of an outdoor pool and associated works.

29/08/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 272/APP/2017/3148

Drawing Nos: Design & Access Statement
P-09-000
P-09-003 A
P-09-001
P-09-002 A
P-09-004

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

This application seeks full planning permission for the installation of an outdoor swimming
pool with a retaining wall and 1.1 m close board fence surrounding it. 

The proposal fully complies with the aims of the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF), London Plan policy 3.19 and UDP policy R10, which seek to encourage the
provision of new and/or enhanced sports facilities. It is considered that the proposed
development would result in an acceptable impact on the visual amenities of the site. The
proposal would not have a significant detrimental impact on the amenities of the occupiers
of neighbouring residential properties. The proposal is considered to comply with relevant
Local Plan and London Plan policies and, accordingly is recommended for approval.

The proposal is considered to be appropriate development in the Green Belt.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

COM3

COM4

Time Limit

Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers P-09-003 A and P-
09-004, and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development
remains in existence.
 
REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

1

2

2. RECOMMENDATION 

11/09/2017Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 13

Page 93



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

COM9

NONSC

NONSC

Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping
1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate.

The approved scheme shall be implemented before the use of the development hereby
permitted is commenced.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Full details of all proposed lighting shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and direction of
light sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting that is so installed shall not
thereafter be altered without the prior consent in writing of the Local Planning Authority
other than for routine maintenance which does not change its details. The approved
scheme shall be implemented before the use of the development hereby permitted is
commenced.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties in accordance with policies BE13 and
OE1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The proposed development shall not be illuminated except between:-
[0800 to 2200] Mondays - Fridays
[0800 to 2100] Saturdays
[1000 to 1800] Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays.

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy OE1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

3

4

5

I59 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies1

INFORMATIVES

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for

Page 94



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I47

I15

Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

2

3

3.1 Site and Locality

The David Lloyd Northwood is a multi-sports and health complex within extensive
landscaped grounds. There is a large essentially single storey building sited on the North
Western boundary of the site with a large car park to the front, the access to which is
obtained from the A4180 (Ducks Hill Road). There are 13 floodlit outdoor tennis courts on
the South and East side of the building, with a small lake in front. 

The site is adjoined to the North West by the grounds of Mount Vernon Hospital, to the
North by the grounds of the Northwood Cricket Club, to the East and South East by
residential development fronting Ducks Hill Road and Cygnet Close and to the West by

development control decisions.

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. 

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 95



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

open farm land.  

The site is within a Countryside Conservation Area and forms part of the Green Belt, as do
the adjoining hospital and cricket grounds and open land to the South, West and North, as
identified in the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

272/APP/2016/1562 - Variation of condition 14 (Operating Hours) of planning permission
ref: 272/DL/93/1539 dated 09/01/1995 (approved)
272/APP/2014/1529 - Installation of 43 additional parking spaces, resurfacing of access
road and installation of storage shed to rear (approved)
272/APP/2014/1234 - Installation of a temporary 3 court tennis dome, fan housing and
ancillary facilities (approved)

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is for the installation of an outdoor pool with associated works.

272/APP/2012/975

272/APP/2014/1234

272/APP/2014/1529

272/APP/2014/4281

272/APP/2016/1562

Car Park For Virgin Active At 18 Ducks Hill Road Northwood 

Riverside Health And Racquets Club, 18 Ducks Hill Road Northwood 

Riverside Health And Racquets Club, 18 Ducks Hill Road Northwood 

Park Farm Ducks Hill Road Northwood 

Northwood Health & Raquets Club 18 Ducks Hill Road Northwood 

Installation of 10 x light columns with luminares involving the removal of existing bollard fittings

Installation of a temporary 3 court tennis dome, fan housing and ancillary facilities.

Installation of 43 additional parking spaces, resurfacing of access road and installation of storage

shed to rear

Application for a non-material amendment to planning permission Ref: 272/APP/2014/379 dated

07/08/2014 to relocate entrance door and provide an additional window at the first floor (Two

storey, 1-bed,attached dwelling with associated parking and amenity space)

Variation of condition 14 (Operating Hours) of planning permission ref: 272/DL/93/1539 dated

09/01/1995 (Demolition of existing buildings and erection of a 11,938 sq. metres indoor tennis

centre with ancillary sports and restaurant facilities, and outside tennis courts).

18-09-2012

29-07-2014

10-02-2015

31-12-2014

03-08-2016

Decision: 

Decision: 

Decision: 

Decision: 

Decision: 

Approved

Approved

Approved

Refused

Approved

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 96



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

272/APP/2012/975 - Installation of 10 x light columns with luminares involving the removal
of existing bollard fittings (approved)
272/DL/93/1539 - Demolition of existing buildings and erection of a 11,938 sq. metres
indoor tennis centre with ancillary sports and restaurant facilities, and outside tennis courts
(approved)

4. Planning Policies and Standards

PT1.BE1

PT1.CI2

PT1.EM2

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Leisure and Recreation

(2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM7

AM14

BE13

BE20

BE21

BE38

OE1

OL1

OL2

OL4

OL5

OL15

R10

R16

LPP 3.19

LPP 7.16

NPPF

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

Green Belt -landscaping improvements

Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

Protection of Countryside Conservation Areas

Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social, community
and health services

Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

(2016) Sports Facilities

(2016) Green Belt

National Planning Policy Framework

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

Page 97



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

6. Consultations

7.01 The principle of the development

The National Planning Policy Framework states that the essential characteristics of Green
Belts are their openness and their permanence. Therefore, the provision of new buildings in
the Green Belt is inappropriate except in very special circumstances. These can include
limited infilling or partial redevelopment of previously developed sites.

Policy OL1 of adopted Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) also advises that within the
Green Belt the Local Planning Authority will not grant planning permissions for new
buildings other than for purposes essential for and associated with predominantly open
land use such as open air recreation facilities.The proposal is plainly for an outdoor
recreation activity, and hence is appropriate development in the Green Belt.

Policy R10 seeks to encourage the provision of enhanced facilities across the Borough,
stating:

"The Local Planning Authority will regard proposals for new meeting halls, buildings for
education, social, community and health services, including libraries, nursery, primary and
secondary school buildings, as acceptable in principle subject to other policies of this plan."

This is reiterated in the London Plan Policy 3.19 which states:

"The Mayor's Sports Legacy Plan aims to increase participation in, and tackle inequality of
access to, sport and physical activity in London particularly amongst groups/areas with low
levels of participation.

Development proposals that increase or enhance the provision of sports and recreation
facilities will be supported.... Wherever possible, multi-use public facilities for sport and
recreational activity should be encouraged. The provision of floodlighting should be
supported in areas where there is an identified need for sports facilities to increase sports
participation opportunities, unless the floodlighting gives rise to demonstrable harm to local
community or biodiversity."

The application site is located within the green belt and a countryside conservation area.
The impact of the development on the openess and character of the green belt is
considered acceptable as discussed later in this report. 

Internal Consultees

No consultations were applicable to this application.

External Consultees

4 Neighbouring properties and the Northwood Residents Association were consulted for a period of
21 days expiring on the 23 October 2017. A site notice was also erected on the sign to the front of
the access road, expiring on 13 October 2017.. 

One response was received advising this was a welcome addition to the local area. The site is huge
and can easily accommodate an outdoor pool without impacting the surrounding land. 

Cadent Gas - Due to the presence of Cadent and/or National Grid apparatus in proximity to the
specified area, the contractor should contact Plant Protection before any works are carried out to
ensure the apparatus is not affected by any of the proposed works.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 98



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

The proposal fully complies with the aims of the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF), London Plan policy 3.19 and UDP policy R10, which seek to encourage the
provision of new and/or enhanced sports and educational facilities. 

It is considered that the proposed development would result in an acceptable impact on the
visual amenities of the site, the green belt and the Countryside Conservation Area. The
proposal would not have a significant detrimental impact on the amenities of the occupiers
of neighbouring residential units.

Not relevant to this proposal.

The site is located within a Countryside Conservation Area. This is an area of the Borough
which is recognised to have a traditional agricultural landscape that is made up of a diverse
matrix of small fields, hedges, copses, woods and farm ponds. These landscapes have
considerable visual and aesthetic appeal. However, as agricultural practices change, and
as land is taken out of agriculture, the elements which make up the character and local
distinctiveness of such landscapes often come under threat. Policy OL15 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan (November 2012) seeks to protect the landscape of Countryside Conservation
areas from development and/or activities which would detract from the special character of
these landscapes.

The proposed development will incorporate a new outdoor swimming pool (with small
children's pool and terraced seating/lounging areas) built into the existing grass bank set
between the existing building and the out door tennis courts adjacent. As such it is
considered that in this immediate locality there are no elements which contribute to the
distinctive local character which would be adversely affected by the development. The
proposal is therefore deemed to conform with the requirements of Policy OL15 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

Not relevant to this proposal.

The application site is located within the green belt and as such the development must be
considered against relevant policy and guidance contained within the NPPF.

The proposed development will incorporate a new outdoor swimming pool built into the
existing grass bank set between the existing building and the out door tennis courts
adjacent. As such the development will not introduce a new or extended land use on the
site and instead it is the impact of the swimming pool and additional fencing itself that must
be taken into consideration. The swimming pool is set at the same land level of the
adjacent tennis courts approximately 1.75 m below the ground level of the existing gym
buildings.  The retaining wall measures 1 m in height with a close board fence of 1.1 m
above. This is set against the existing fencing 2.75 m high fencing enclosing the adjacent
tennis courts to the South East and North East, and the existing 1.9 m high fencing at the
top of the grass bank to the North West. The proposed structure is relatively small scale
when viewed against the back drop of much larger existing buildings and therefore the
impact of this structure is deemed minimal. The visual impact of the development on the
openness of the green belt is therefore deemed acceptable and insufficient to warrant a
recommendation of refusal. In addition there is existing mature planting to the South West
that will screen the development to a degree and a condition could to be attached to any
consent requiring a full landscaping plan to be agreed with the Council in accordance with
Policy OL2. The development is therefore considered to accord with policies OL1, OL2 and

Page 99



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

OL4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and Policy 7.16 of the London Plan
(2016).

The suggested lighting is proposed to be controlled by suitable conditions.

As previously discussed.

The proposed development is set behind the existing tennis courts when viewed from the
residential properties which are located to the East and South of the site. However the
closest residential property is located approximately 150 m from the site of the proposed
swimming pool, which would be viewed against a back drop of the existing gym buildings.

No details of any proposed additional landscaping have been submitted with the application
however additional planting could be provided to the South West of the pool and details of
this could be conditioned for submission if all other aspects of the proposal were
considered acceptable. The lighting is to be controlled by conditions. The impact on
neighbours is considered acceptable and would comply with Local Plan Policy OE1.

Not relevant to this proposal.

Although there is potential for an increased number of vehicle movements due to the
additional facilities, given that the size, scale and level of existing facilities and the relatively
minor addition this may not be such a significant increase that could cause highway hazard
to other road users, the potential for noise from the increased traffic movement would be
unlikely to have any greater impact on local residents than as existing.

The proposal is not considered to raise any specific security concerns.

The scheme would provide a ramped access with polyester powder coated handrails both
sides enabling use of the swimming pool facilities. Access to the existing health club
buildings will not be affected by the proposal and as such the scheme is considered to be
consistent with Policy R16 of the Hilingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

Not relevant to this proposal.

There are no trees covered by a TPO or any significant trees or other vegetation of merit
that would be adversely affected by the development. There is scope to plant trees to
providing additional screening of the proposed swimming pool to the South West. Details
for this will be secured by  condition. As such the proposed scheme is considered to
accord with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012).

Not relevant to this proposal.

Not relevant to this proposal.

Not relevant to this proposal.

Page 100



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

Not relevant to this proposal.

None.

Not relevant to this application.

Not relevant to this application.

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.
 
Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned. 
 
Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.
 
Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.
 
Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).
 
Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should

Page 101



North Planning Committee - 10th January 2018

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

For the reasons outlined above and given that the development complies with the
aforementioned policies of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies November 2012), this application is recommended for conditional approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012).
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2
The London Plan (2016)
Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.
National Planning Policy Framework

Liz Arnold 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 102



18

The Riverside Club

Tennis Courts

Tennis Courts

Tennis Courts

Tennis Courts

El Sub Sta

´

January 2017

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

David Lloyd 

Northwood

North Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

272/APP/2017/3148

Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14

Page 105

PART II - STRICTLY NOT FOR PUBLICATION

Document is Restricted



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 15

Page 113

PART II - STRICTLY NOT FOR PUBLICATION

Document is Restricted



Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Annex

Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



V
Y

N

33

C
O

U
R

T
 R

O
A

D

THE CHASE

29

A
L

B
A

N
Y

 C
L

O
S

E 33a

27

1

39

5

15

39.6m

42

53

35

38.7m

37

42

26

40

30

19

SWAKELEYS DRIVE

22

38.1m

15

26

31

4
8

18

´

January 2017

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

3 Albany Close

North Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

72581/APP/2017/3376

Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Shelter

Posts

E
L
G

O
O

D

61

5
9

45

16

2

1

6
5

3
0

24

HILLSIDE ROAD

Posts

A
V

E
N

U
E

W
IE

LAND R
OAD

53

84.4m

63

LB

87.8m

Hurley

W
A

Y

N
O

R
T

H
W

O
O

D

D
ra

in

43

The End House

84.1m

20

25

13

49

Pincio

14

6
5

45

Drain

4
0

Ellesselle

´

January 

2018

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

53 Weiland Road 

Northwood

North Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

28044/APP/2017/2249

Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Windsor House

44.5m

Pinova

U
n

d

Und

CS

C
H

G
L

 A
s

ly
 C

o
n

s
t 

&
 L

B
 B

d
y

C
H

U
n

d

U
n

d

C
F

Ward Bdy

C
W

River Pinn

Eversholt

The Cottage

EASTCOTE

THE CIRCUITS

Long

Midhurst

36

7

Tree

Birchmead

LA
R
K
S
W

O
O

D

The Glen

Tops

R
IS

E
HIG

H R
OAD

Thorney

Conway

2

3
1

26

Cotswold

Hascombe

Marlborough

Wynnstay

14

Lawn

Meadow

HIGH ROAD

Cottage

Cottage

12

6

C
H

E
N

E
YS
T
R

E
E

T

H
IL

L

28

Applegarth

N
o

rth
s
id

e

Lodge

D
a
n
e
m

e
a
d

Pinn

45.4m

Mistletoe Farm

Blendworth

 CLOSE

EASTCOTE

Cottage

50.0m

Langside

ig
h

Drain

Spindle

Post

C
U

C
K

O
O

Cottage

El Sub Sta

South

2

5

15

T
re

e
 T

o
p
s

New Lodge

Woodberry

44.7m

44.9m

´

January 2017

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

Midhurst Cottage

High Road

North Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

73006/APP/2017/3705

Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



1b

1a

Churc
h

1c

1d

11

1

1

8

6

A
B

B
O

T
 C

L
O

S
E

eth
odis

t
th

 R
uis

lip

58

2

33

43

68

21

35.4m

162

80

ESS

12

32

19
13

13

DOW
N B

ARNS R
OAD

20

22

34

27 B
R

A
C

K
E

N
B

R
ID

G
E

 D
R

IV
E

20

26

194

196

191

22

LO
NG

 D
RIV

E

1

M
O

NKS C
LOSE

225

164

6

10

180

35.4m

Deane P
ark

Hall

´

January 2017

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

8 Monks Close

Ruislip

North Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

72216/APP/2017/3508

Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



9
9
a

9
9

Shelter

9
7

9
6

CHELS

19a

19

Shelter

Old L
1 to 1

LB

1a

32b

1b

32a

2
1

114

S
U

N
N

Y
D

E
N

E
 A

V
E

N
U

E

R
O

S
E

B
U

R
Y

 V
A

L
E

111

gswear

2
2

147 138

140

31

171

Ashburton

44.2m

1

146

2

1
4

163

149

1
2

2

2
2

116

126

42.4m

LB

21b
21a

1

1
3
8

137

1 to 12

2

18

1

2
7

A
S

H
B

U
R

T
O

N
 R

2

1
0
8

1
2
2

11

43.3m

1
5

1

2

Warburton Court

165

1
9

1
5
0

11
9

1
0
1

1
0

1
2

4
1

HATHERLEIG
H ROAD

39

CORNWALL ROAD

8

2
4

21

3
4

Court

1
3

32

´

January 2017

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

4 Ashburton Road

North Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

15579/APP/2017/3615

Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



1

Court

Hall

Park Way

The Pembroke Centre

105
105b

1 to 39

Windmill Court

Garage

Car P
ark

134

122

50.3m

Ruislip

Baptis
t

W
E

S
T

 W
A

Y

48.5m

Chapel
West Way

93

SL

89

126

Hall

Church

7

ESS

TCB

(LU)
Ruislip Manor S

tation

Shelter

Shelter

S
h
e
lte

r

Shelter

Play Area

41

3743

5
5

45

5
0

Crown
Apartments

1 to 24

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

4
2

1
9
b

83

3
5

4
5

W
IN

D
M

IL
L
 H

IL
L

1
9

116

66

1

4
8

71

C
lu

b

1
7

69

58 to
 64

4
7

4
9

5
9

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 R
O

A
D

Sorting Office

E
A

S
T

 W
A

Y

Car 

Bank

3

47.9m

4
0

4
6

3
0

1
2

E
lm

 P
a
rk

112110108

2

6
1

5

81

44.8m

73

76

5
0

2
0

2
1

Shelter

´

January 2017

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

4 Victoria Road

North Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

34090/APP/2017/3428

Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Victoria Court

1 to 8

Library

l Sub Sta

4
5

4
7

4
9

1

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 R
O

A
D

5
1

TCB

2

4
0

3

44.8m

5
0

SHENLEY AVENUE

9
9
a

9
9

Shelter

D
U

LV
E

R
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D

1
4

6
4

4
2

1

7

2
8

2

3

7
8

Bank

44.8m

5

1
7

5
2

8

S
y
n

a
g

o
g

u
e

6
1

7
3

8
5

9
7

21

9

8
0

9
0

7
6

2
9

7
4

9

1

22

9
6

CHELSTON APPROA

Shelter

Old Library Cour
1 to 11

114

S
U

N
N

Y
D

E
N

E
 A

V
E

N
U

E

S
E

B
U

R
Y

 V
A

L
E

111

2
2

147 138

140

171

7

1

44.2m

146

1
4

163

149

1
2

2

LB

1
3
8

1
3
3

2

1 to 12

1
0
8

1
2
2

43.3m

Warburton Court

165

1
9

11
9

1
0
1

CORNWALL ROAD

1
3

´

January

2018

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

86 Victoria Road

North Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

28709/APP/2017/3180

Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



18

The Riverside Club

Tennis Courts

Tennis Courts

Tennis Courts

Tennis Courts

El Sub Sta

´

January 2017

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

David Lloyd 

Northwood

North Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

272/APP/2017/3148

Page 176


	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 3 Albany Close, Ickenham - 72581/APP/2017/3376
	7 53 Weiland Road, Northwood - 28044/APP/2017/2249
	8 Midhurst Cottage, High Road, Eastcote - 73006/APP/2017/3705
	9 8 Monks Close, Ruislip - 72216/APP/2017/3508
	10 4 Ashburton Road, Ruislip - 15579/APP/2017/3615
	11 4 Victoria Road, Ruislip - 34090/APP/2017/3428
	12 86 Victoria Road, Ruislip - 28709/APP/2017/3180
	13 David Lloyd Club, Northwood - 272/APP/2017/3148
	14 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	15 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	PART I - Plans for North Planning Committee

